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The Board of Directors' and CEO's Report

Marel is a leading global provider of advanced equipment, systems and services for the Poultry, Meat and Fish
industries. Marel has offices and subsidiaries in over 30 countries and a global network of more than 100 agents and
distributors.

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year 2016 comprise the financial statements of Marel hf. (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”). The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union (“*EU”) and
additional Icelandic disclosure requirements.

Operations in 2016

In November 2015 Marel agreed to acquire the Dutch company MPS Holding Ill B.V. (‘“MPS”) and its subsidiaries for
EUR 382 million on a debt and cash-free basis. The closing of the acquisition of MPS took place 29 January 2016.
Further information is provided in note 4 of the Consolidated Financial Statements. Parallel to the acquisition, Marel
entered into a long term financing agreement for the Group for the amount of close to EUR 670 million. Maturity date
for this long term financing agreement is 2020.

The bridge between adjusted result from operations and result from operations as shown in the Consolidated
Statement of Income is as follows:

2016 2015

Adjusted result from operations 139,361 96,583
Adjustment fOr refOCUSING COSES.......iiiiiiiriii et see e ens - (14,970)
Adjustment amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets (24,585) -
Result from operations 114,776 81,613

The pro forma revenues for Marel, including MPS for the full year, are EUR 983.0 million (2015: EUR 975.8 million).
The pro forma adjusted results from operations for the same periods are EUR 143.5 million or 14.6% of revenues for
2016 (2015: EUR 133.7 million or 13.7% of revenues).

According to the Consolidated Statement of Income for 2016, the Group's revenue amounted to EUR 969.7 million
(2015: EUR 818.6 million), an increase of 18.5%. The result from operations, before adjustments for amortization of
acquisition-related intangible assets (“PPA costs”) of EUR 24.6 million, was EUR 139.4 million

(2015: EUR 96.6 million adjusted for refocusing costs related to the refocusing program Simpler, Smarter, Faster), an
increase of 44.3%. The profit for the year amounted to EUR 75.8 million (2015: EUR 56.7 million). In 2016 the
Company expensed EUR 63.1 million (2015: EUR 57.0 million) for research and development. Basic earnings per
share were 10.59 euro cents (2015: 7.93 euro cents).

According to the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Company's assets amounted to

EUR 1,392.4 million at the end of 2016 (2015: EUR 938.2 million), an increase mostly traceable to the acquisition of
MPS. Group equity amounted to EUR 525.6 million at the end of 2016 (at year-end 2015: EUR 446.7 million) or
37.7% of total assets (at year-end 2015: 47.6%). Net interest bearing debt increased from EUR 142.8 million at the
end of 2015 to EUR 403.6 million at the end of 2016. Net debt/EBITDA is 2.25x which is within the range of the
targeted capital structure.

The average number of full time employees was 4,599 in 2016 (2015: 3,886). The increase is mainly due to the
acquisition of MPS in January 2016. Total salaries and wages were EUR 284.4 million (2015: EUR 231.2 million).

Based on the decision taken at the Company's 2016 Annual General Meeting, a dividend was paid out to
shareholders for the operational year 2015 amounting to EUR 11.3 million; EUR 1.58 cents per share, corresponding
to approximately 20% of net result for the year (2015: a dividend of EUR 3.5 million; EUR 0.48 cents per share, was
paid out to shareholders for the operational year 2014).

The goodwill of the Group was tested for impairment at year-end by calculating its recoverable amount. The results of
these impairment tests were that there was no impairment as the recoverable amount of the goodwill was well above
book value.

At the end of 2016 the Company’s order book amounted to EUR 350 million (pro forma order book as at
31 December 2015: EUR 320 million).
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The management and the Board of Directors of the Group believe that they are taking all the necessary measures to
support the sustainability and growth of the Group’s business in the current circumstances. Accordingly they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements.

The management of the Company believes it is well placed to manage its business risks successfully based on the
present economic outlook. Further information is disclosed in note 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Share Capital and Articles of Association

At year-end Marel's issued shares totaled 735.6 million, all in one class, and unchanged from the end of 2015.
Thereof Marel holds, at year-end 2016, 21.5 million treasury shares (2015: 30.9 million treasury shares). The number
of shareholders at year-end 2016 was 1,907 compared to 1,986 at the end of 2015.

The ten biggest shareholders were:

Year-end 2016 Year-end 2015

Number of Number of

shares, shares,

million % million %

Eyrir Invest hf. Investment company 2154 29,3% 2154 29,3%
Lifeyrissjodur verslunarmanna Pension fund 67,0 9,1% 67,0 9,1%
Gildi - lifeyrissjéour Pension fund 51,3 7,0% 47,7 6,5%
LSR A,B & S div. Lifeyrsj hjakrfr. Pension fund 48,0 6,5% 41,0 5,6%
Stefnir - IS 15 Asset management 32,1 4,4% 39,8 5,4%
Birta (ex.Stafir & Sameinadi lifeyrissj.) Pension fund 31,9 4,3% 32,2 4,4%
Stefnir - IS 5 Asset management 20,1 2, 7% 21,2 2,9%
Stapi lifeyrissjodur Pension fund 17,3 2,4% 22,8 3,1%
Landsbankinn Bank 13,7 1,9% 12,2 1,7%
Festa - lifeyrissjéour Pension fund 12,9 1,8% 11,9 1,6%
Top 10 total 509,8 69,3% 511,2 69,5%
Others 204,2 27,8% 193,5 26,3%
Marel hf. Treasury shares 21,5 2,9% 30,9 4,2%
Total issued shares 735,6 100,0% 735,6 100,0%

During the year 2016, Marel purchased 4.0 million shares for EUR 8.1 million to fulfill future stock option obligations
and sold 2.6 million treasury shares for a total amount of EUR 2.7 million to fulfill the employees’ stock option
schedules. In connection with the acquisition of MPS, Marel sold 10.8 million treasury shares for EUR 16.3 million to
the previous owners of MPS.

In 2015, Marel purchased 25.0 million shares for EUR 32.0 million to be used as payment for potential future
acquisitions, per the company’s announcement on 29 April 2015. Marel also purchased 6.0 million shares for
EUR 6.0 million to fulfill future stock option obligations, and sold 7.1 million treasury shares for a total amount of
EUR 4.4 million to fulfill the employees’ stock option schedules.

Stock options are granted to management and selected employees. Total granted and unexercised stock options at
end of the year 2016 were 8.8 million shares (2015: 10.5 million shares), of which 1.8 million are exercisable at the
end of 2016 (2015: 3.2 million) and the remainder will become vested in the years 2017 to 2021. Further information
is disclosed in note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

At the Company's 2014 Annual General Meeting, the shareholders authorized the Board of Directors to increase the
Company's share capital by 35 million shares to fulfill stock option agreements. No new shares were issued in 2016
(2015: no new shares issued). This authorization applies for five years from its adoption.
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The Board of Directors will propose at the 2017 Annual General Meeting that EUR cents 2.14 dividend per
outstanding share will be paid for the operational year 2016, corresponding to approximately EUR 15.3 million or 20%
of net result attributable to Shareholders of the Company of EUR 75.8 million for the year 2016, and refers to the
Consolidated Financial Statements regarding appropriation of the profit for the year and changes in Shareholders’
equity. This is proposed in accordance to Marel’s dividend policy, disclosed at Marel's Annual General Meeting in
March 2011. The target is that the net debt/EBITDA ratio is 2 - 3 times EBITDA, excess capital to be used to
stimulate growth and value creation as well as paying dividend and that dividend or share buy-back is targeted at 20-
40% of the net result.

Corporate Responsibility Statement

Corporate Governance

The framework for the Company’s Corporate Governance practices consists of the provisions of the law and
regulations, the Company’s Atrticles of Association and the Icelandic Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued in
June 2015 by the Iceland Chamber of Commerce, NASDAQ Iceland and SA - Confederation of Icelandic Employers.
In compliance with the guidelines, the Board of Directors has prepared a Corporate Governance Statement.

The Board of Directors is comprised of 3 female Directors and 4 male Directors, which is in accordance with the
statutory gender ratio of Boards of Directors of Public Limited Companies in Iceland, with more than 50 employees
(ratio of each gender shall be no less than 40%).

Candidates for the Board of Directors of the Company have to notify the Board of Directors thereof in writing at least
five full days before the beginning of the Annual General Meeting. The Company's Articles of Association can only be
amended with the approval of 2/3 of casted votes and approval of shareholders who control at least 2/3 of the shares
represented in a legal shareholders' meeting, provided that the notification calling the meeting thoroughly informs on
such amendment.

Non-financial information
In 2016, the Company introduced its Corporate Social Responsibility Principles, addressing environmental, social and
ethical matters, summarized as follows:

Social Responsibility

Marel provides a safe and healthy working environment and equal opportunities. It fosters individual and team
development and ensures the right to freedom of association for all its employees. Human rights violations, illegal
labor conditions and illegal and unethical business behavior are never tolerated. Marel engages with local
communities, where innovation and education serve as the main areas of social participation.

Environmental Responsibility

Marel encourages efficient use of resources in its value chain and promotes positive environmental impact and
environmental protection. Innovation is at the core of Marel’s strategy, where the focus is on continuously creating
new methods for improving yields and minimizing waste in food production, reducing the use of scarce resources
such as energy and water, and promoting food safety and animal welfare.

Economical Responsibility

Marel promotes long term value creation, fair trade and good business practices in its value chain through
transparency, innovation and collaboration with all its partners.

The Corporate Responsibility Statement is explained and discussed in more detail in a separate document distributed
with the Consolidated Financial Statements as well as included in the Annual Report 2016.



Cmarel

Statement by the Board of Directors and the CEO

According to the Board of Directors’ and CEO’s best knowledge these Consolidated Financial Statements comply
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and additional Icelandic
disclosure requirements for consolidated financial statements of listed companies. Further according to the Board of
Directors’ and CEQO'’s best knowledge, the statements give a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at
31 December 2016, operating performance and the cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2016 as well as
describe the principal risk and uncertainty factors faced by the Group. The report of the Board of Directors and CEO
provides a clear overview of developments and achievements in the Group’s operations and its situation.

The Board of Directors and CEO of Marel hf. hereby ratify the Consolidated Financial Statements of Marel hf. for the
year 2016 with their signatures.

Gardabeer, 8 February 2017

Board of Directors

Asthildur Margrét Otharsdaéttir
Chairman of the Board

Arnar bor Masson Ann Elizabeth Savage
Astvaldur J6hannsson Helgi Magnuasson
Margrét Jonsdottir Olafur S. Gudmundsson

Chief Executive Officer

Arni Oddur bérdarson
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Marel hf.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of Marel hf. (“the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2016, and the Consolidated Statement of Income, Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of ethics for
Icelandic auditors, which are based on the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”). We have also fulfilled other ethical requirements of that rules. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Business combination

On 29 January 2016 Marel concluded the acquisition of
MPS Holding Ill B.V. (“MPS”) and obtained control
through acquiring 100% of the issued shares of MPS.

MPS is a subsidiary of Marel Holding B.V. The purchase
price was EUR 295 million. Management assessment is
that the acquisition of MPS qualifies as a business
combination.

Management determined that the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired was EUR 49 million with
EUR 246 million relating to goodwill that arose from the
business combination.

The valuation of the intangible assets was performed as
part of the purchase price allocation and the values of
the intangible assets have been determined.

The intangible assets arising from the business
combination is a significant area of judgment, and
therefore a key audit matter.

The valuation methodology, as well as the inputs and
assumptions in the model, will affect the fair value of the
intangible assets.

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of MPS is also
highly dependent on the fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date.

We reviewed management’s assessment that the
acquisition of MPS should be accounted for as a
business combination.

We assessed the appropriateness of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date by reviewing the purchase agreement.

We also challenged management’s procedure for
determining the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired and the allocation of the purchase price.

We tested the calculation of the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of MPS, being the difference between the
total purchase consideration and the fair value of the net
identifiable assets.

In our audit we assessed and tested assumptions and
methodologies for data used in identifying and valuing
the fair value of acquired intangible assets and included
our valuation specialists in the audit team to assist with
these procedures.

We also challenged the adequacy of the disclosures in
note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Goodwill

Goodwill amounts to EUR 635 million and represents
46% of total assets as at 31 December 2016.

The book value of the Group’s goodwill results from
acquistions in past years and the current year.
Impairment of goodwill is a key audit matter due to the
high level of judgment required in assessing the inputs
into a valuation model supporting management’s
assessment of impairment.

The most significant judgment incorporated in
management’s assessment of impairment include
forecasted cash flows, weighted average cost of capital
and the assumptions underlying forecasted growth.

The Group’s goodwill is allocated to three cash
generating units, being Poultry, Fish and Meat. The
annual impairment test was significant to our audit
because the assessment process is complex, judgmental
and is based on assumptions that are affected by
expected future market and economic conditions.

We challenged the cash flow projections included in the
annual goodwill impairment tests.

For our audit we critically assessed and tested the
assumptions, methodologies, the weighted average cost
of capital and other data used, for example by comparing
them to external and historical data, such as external
market growth expectations and by analyzing sensitivities
in Marel’s valuation model.

We included valuation specialists in our team to assist us
with these procedures.

We specifically focused on the sensitivity in the available
headroom for the cash generating units, evaluating
whether a reasonably possible change in assumptions
could cause the carrying amount to exceed its
recoverable amount, and assessed the historical
accuracy of management’s estimates.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures in
note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Other Information

The Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report of the Group, but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements
and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. The Annual Report is not available at our reporting date but is expected to be
made available to us after that date.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and CEO for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and for such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Directors and the CEO are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors and CEO are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors and Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors and Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors and Audit Committee, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Article 104, Paragraph 2 of the Icelandic Financial Statement Act No. 3/20086,
we confirm that, to the best of our knowledge, the report of the Board of Directors and CEO accompanying the
Consolidated Financial Statements includes the information required by the Financial Statement Act if not disclosed

elsewhere in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Seemundur Valdimarsson and
Hrafnhildur Helgadéttir.

Reykjavik, 8 February 2017

KPMG ehf.

Seemundur Valdimarsson // 7//7/{/”{[ [/////?/’MZ/V(

Hrafnhildur Helgadottir K{@{’V\/\/\Akm Ey&(
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Consolidated Statement of Income

2016 2015
Notes

REVEIUES ... .eeie ettt et et e e s b e e ettt e e e s eba e e e e sabbaeeesasbaeeesebbaeeesatsbeeesantaeeeesnseeeenns 5 969,671 818,602
(0015 A0 7= 1= SRRSO 7 (572,663) (499,087)
Gross profit 397,008 319,515
Selling and Marketing EXPENSES......c..ciiiiiiiiiircire et 7 (128,499) (110,438)
Research and development EXPENSES........ccccvviiiiiiieieieiesee et sre e aeeenes 7 (63,103)  (57,004)
General and adminiStrative EXPENSES......cviviicrieriereresesesese e eaeseese e seesresresresresseeseens 7  (66,270)  (55,955)
Other operating income / (expenses) 7 225 465
Adjusted result from operations” 5 139,361 96,583

Total refOCUSING COSES....viiiiiiiiiiiicieie e s sr e 6,7 - (14,970)

Total amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets..........cccccecevevevevererienn, 4,7  (24,585) -
Result from operations 114,776 81,613
FINBNCE COSES.. .ttt bbbttt b bbb e bt bt bt ebe e st e nes 8  (25,918)  (13,205)
Finance income 8 631 1,298
Net finance costs.... 8  (25,287)  (11,907)
Result before income tax 89,489 69,706
[ ToT0] -V SRS 11 (13,645) (13,010)
Net result 75,844 56,696
Of w hich:
- Result attributable to Non-controlling INTErestS ........cccvvvviviicicieeere e 20 53 -
- Net result attributable to Shareholders of the Company...........cccoccoeiiinieneienenseneeees 12 75,791 56,696

Earnings per share for result attributable to Shareholders of the Company during

the period (expressed in EURcent per share):

S DBSIC i te e e re s 12 10.59 7.93
S OHUEE <.ttt 12 10.54 7.90

K Adjusted result from operations: for 2016 this means adjusted for amortization of acquisition-related intangible
assets and for 2015 adjusted for refocusing costs.

The notes on pages 16-68 are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016 10
All amounts in EUR*1000 unless otherwise stated.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Net Result

Iltems that are or will be reclassified to profit or loss:

Currency translation diffEreNCES.......coeiv i
CaSh FIOW NEAGES.....cceiiiiie et n e
Cash flow hedges reclassified to profit Or I0SS........ccoovviiiiiiiiii e
Income tax relating to cash flow hedges

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the period, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

Of w hich:
- Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling iNterests ..........cccoovveericiiennens
- Comprehensive income attributable to Shareholders of the Company.............cccccceeeneee.

The notes on pages 16-68 are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016
All amounts in EUR*1000 unless otherwise stated.

Notes

20
20
20
16,20

2016 2015
75,844 56,696
1,258 (1,962)
2,002 2,356
- (428)
(272) (475)
2,988 (509)
78,832 56,187
53 -
78,779 56,187

11
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS Notes 2016 2015

Non-current assets

Property, plant and @qUIPIMENT..............iiiiieiii et 13 118,991 89,005
[T To 1 USSP 14 635,180 389,407
Other INtANGIDIE ASSEIS....uiiiiiiiiiiieiii ettt sbae e s b e sbee e snaeeenees 14 277,458 107,018
Trade FECEIVADIES ... 15 237 443
Derivative financial INSTTUMENTS............oiiiiiiiie et 24 447 -

Deferred income tax assets 16 7,343 10,029

1,039,656 595,902
Current assets

017 1 (0] 4= S PP P RO RTOUPRRPPRN 17 122,250 99,382
Production contracts ... 18 36,962 17,261
Trade rECERIVADIES ... et e e e e e e e e s e e et ae b raeeeeeeeas 15 115,259 99,696
ASSELS NEIA FOr SAIB......ccuveeic ittt et e ettt e e e st e e e e e eab e e e s ebaeeeesetbaeeesennes 19 - 3,799
Other receivables and PrepaymeNntS.........co i 15 32,723 29,139
Derivative financial INSrUMENTS...........oiiiiiiieie e 24 55 -
Cash and cash QUIVAIBNTS...........cuii ittt tee s 45,523 92,976

352,772 342,253

TOTAL ASSETS 1,392,428 938,155
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

SNAIE CAPILAL . ...ee ittt b e bt e bbb b snaeas 20 6,531 6,445
1= TEEN o] 1100 18 o SRR TRRO 20 288,688 277,919
ORI TESEIVES ...ttt ettt b et a bttt e b et s e he e naresbeenbeenneeteens 20 (2,113) (5,101)
RELAINEA BAIMINGS ... veiitiieiiiie ettt ettt et e et e e st e et e e e steeeesbeeebeeasteeessbeeebeeenseeas 20 232,253 167,476
Shareholders' equity 525,359 446,739
NON-CONLrOIING INTEIESES .....eiiiteiiiieie ettt e 20 214 -
Group equity 525,573 446,739
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

BOITOW INGS ..ttt sttt b bbbttt e b e b s bttt b e bt e bt e bt em e e b et e e b e ebesbeebeeaeeneenes 21 425,014 217,287
Deferred income tax liabilities 16 63,458 15,943
[ 0 AV 2] o LR 22 7,361 6,943

Derivative financial INSITUMENTS.........ccciiii e e e srnee e 24 4,946 3,057

500,779 243,230
Current liabilities

ProdUCTION CONMTACTS ... .eiiiiiiiiieeciiiee ettt ettt e e et e e e et e e e e ettt e e e s saabeeeesenbaeeeesbaneeeans 18 150,769 78,330
Trade and other PAYADIES..........ocviiiiiiiiee e e 25 168,980 139,227
Current inCome taxX abIlIIES.........cc.ei i e e 9,081 3,221
12704 (oY T o S SRR 21 24,117 18,449

Provisions 22 13,129 8,959

366,076 248,186

Total liabilities 866,855 491,416
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,392,428 938,155

The notes on pages 16-68 are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016
All amounts in EUR*1000 unless otherwise stated.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Share- Non-

Share Share Other Retained holders' controlling Group

capital premium’ reserves earnings equity interests equity
Balance at
1 January 2016 6,445 277,919 (5,101) 167,476 446,739 - 446,739
Result
for the period.................. 75,791 75,791 53 75,844
Total other
comprehensive income.. 2,988 2,988 2,988
Business combinations.. 161 161
Transactions w ith
ow ners of the Company
Treasury shares
purchased...................... (36) (8,016) (8,052) (8,052)
Treasury shares sold..... 122 18,844 18,966 18,966
Treasury shares,
transaction costs........... (30) (30) (30)
Value of services
provided..........ccccvvrrnnnnes 300 300 300
Value of services
provided released.......... (329) 290 (39) (39)
Dividend...........ccccvvveeennne (11,304) (11,304) (11,304)

86 10,769 2,988 64,777 78,620 214 78,834

Balance at
31 December 2016 6,531 288,688 (2,113) 232,253 525,359 214 525,573

The notes on pages 16-68 are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Share- Non-

Share Share Other Retained holders' controlling Group

capital premium” reserves earnings equity interests equity
Balance at
1 January 2015 6,664 311,748 (4592) 113,678 427,498 - 427,498
Result
for the period.................. 56,696 56,696 56,696
Total other
comprehensive income.. (509) (509) (509)
Transactions w ith
ow ners of the Company
Treasury shares
purchased...................... (284) (37,711) (37,995) (37,995)
Treasury shares sold..... 65 4,340 4,405 4,405
Treasury shares,
transaction costs........... (58) (58) (58)
Value of services
provided...........cccceeeennns 249 249 249
Value of services
provided released.......... (649) 586 (63) (63)
Dividend............cccooeienen. (3,484) (3,484) (3,484)

(219) (33,829) (509) 53,798 19,241 - 19,241

Balance at
31 December 2015 6,445 277,919 (5,101) 167,476 446,739 - 446,739

" Includes reserve for share based payments as per 31 December 2016 of EUR 834 (31 December 2015: EUR 864).

Dividends
In March 2016 a dividend of EUR 11,304 (EUR 1.58 cents per share) was declared for the operational year 2015,

which has been fully paid. In 2015 a dividend of EUR 3,484 (EUR 0.48 cents per share) was declared for the
operational year 2014, which has been fully paid.

Treasury shares
In the beginning of the year 2016 Marel had 30.9 million treasury shares. During the year 2016, Marel purchased

4.0 million shares for EUR 8.1 million to fulfill future stock option obligations and sold 2.6 million treasury shares for a
total amount of EUR 2.7 million to fulfill the employees’ stock option program. In connection with the acquisition of
MPS, Marel sold 10.8 million treasury shares for EUR 16.3 million to the previous owners of MPS. At the end of 2016
Marel had 21.5 million treasury shares.

In 2015, Marel purchased 25.0 million shares for EUR 32.0 million to be used as payment for potential future
acquisitions, per the company’s announcement on 29 April 2015. Marel also purchased 6.0 million shares for
EUR 6.0 million to fulfill future stock option obligations, and sold 7.1 million treasury shares for a total amount of
EUR 4.4 million to fulfill the employees’ stock option program.

For further information on Employee stock option schemes, refer to note 20.

The notes on pages 16-68 are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities Notes 2016 2015

RESUIL FrOM OPEIALIONS ........eeeieieiiie e s 114,776 81,613

Adjustments to reconcile result from operations to net cash provided by / (used in)
operating activities:

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment............cccevveriiinieenieene 13 9,843 8,456
Amortization and impairment of intangible assets 14 50,825 29,622
Loss / (gain) on sale of property, plant and equIPMENt .........cccoooiiiiiiniiee e - 297
Changes in NON-CUrrent reCeivabIes. ..o 206 (349)
Working capital provided by / (used in) operating activities 175,650 119,639
Changes in working capital:

Inventories and production CONIACTS...........ieiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,827 11,798
Trade and other receivables 2,225 (27,680)
Trade and other PayabIES..........c.oo i 2,532 16,992
PrOVISIONS ...ttt b ettt (5,217) (1,010)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 3,367 100
Cash generated from operating activities 179,017 119,739
TAXES PAIG. ...ttt a e (8,086) (12,304)
Interest and fINANCE INCOME............cciiiiiie e s 792 397
Interest and finance costs (34,583) (14,180)
Net cash from operating activities 137,140 93,652

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (21,119) (8,664)
INvestments iN INtANGIDIES ... e e 14 (23,188) (20,267)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eqUIPMENt...........ccooiiiiiiiniieniee e 4,579 4,417
Acquisition of subsidiary, Net 0f CaS.........cciiiiiiiii 4  (368,408) 6,655
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities (408,136) (17,859)

Cash flows from financing activities

Purchase Of treasury SNAresS..........cocoiiiiieiiiiii e (8,082) (38,053)
Sale Of trEASUNY SNAIES.......iiitiiiiiiicie et 18,966 4,405
Proceeds fromM DOMTOW INGS.......ooiiiiiie ettt 365,300 50,000
Repayments Of DOMTOW INQS.......coiuiiiiiieiiee ettt eee s (144,505) (23,591)
DIVIAENAS PAI. ... .eeitiiiiiie ittt ee et et e e e s be e e ssbeesnbeeanteeesabeesnbeaanseans (11,304) (3,484)
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities 220,375 (10,723)
Net increase (decrease) in net cash (50,621) 65,070
Exchange (10SS) / gain 0N Net CaSh.........ccciiiiiiiiiiie s 3,168 3,340
Net cash at beginning of the Period.............ocooiiiiiiini e 92,976 24,566
Net cash at end of the period 45,523 92,976

The notes on pages 16-68 are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016
All amounts in EUR*1000 unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General information

1.1 Reporting entity

Marel hf. ("the Company") is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Iceland. The address of its
registered office is Austurhraun 9, Gardabaer.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as "the Group" or "Marel”).

The Group is a leading global provider of advanced equipment, systems and services for the Poultry, Fish and Meat
industries and is involved in the manufacturing, development, distribution and sales of solutions for these industries.

All amounts are in thousands of EUR unless otherwise stated.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors and CEO on
8 February 2017. These Consolidated Financial Statements as presented in this report are subject to the adoption by
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, to be held on 1 March 2017.

The Company is listed on the Nasdag OMX Nordic Iceland exchange.
1.2 Basis of Accounting

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union (“EU”) and additional Icelandic disclosure
requirements for consolidated financial information of listed companies in accordance with Icelandic Financial
Statements Act No. 3/2006 and rules for issuers of financial instruments in Nasdag in Iceland. The accounting
policies applied by Marel comply with IFRS and the pronouncements of the International Financial Reporting
Interpretation Committee (IFRIC) effective at 31 December 2016.

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
valuation of available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
which are valued at fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Details of the Group’s significant accounting policies are included in note 2.
1.3 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency
that best reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to that entity (“the
functional currency”). The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Euro (EUR), which is the Group's
reporting currency. All financial information presented in EUR has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016 16
All amounts in EUR*1000 unless otherwise stated.



Cmarel

1.4 Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the Consolidated Financial Statements are disclosed in note 3.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future period affected.

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has an established control framework with respect to the
measurement of fair values.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in notes 2.13 Financial
instruments and 24 Financial instruments and risks.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 General

General
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements are set out
below.

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies set out in this section have been applied consistently for all periods presented in these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Prior-year information

The presentation of certain prior-year disclosures has been adjusted to align with the current year disclosures. The

following prior year disclosures have been adjusted:

- The Company has changed its internal reporting structure of the segments and the allocation of operating
expenses to three operating segments (Poultry, Fish and Meat) from 1 January 2016 to reflect the new
organizational structure. Until 1 January 2016 the Company was reporting four operating segments: next to the
above mentioned operating segments the segment Further Processing was used. Further information is
provided in note 5;

- Refocusing costs were included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses, research and development
expenses, administrative expenses and in the other operating income. Further information is provided in note 6.

Specific choices with IFRS
Sometimes IFRS allows alternative accounting treatment for measurement and / or disclosure. The most important of
these alternative treatments are mentioned below:

Tangible and intangible fixed assets

Under IFRS an entity shall disclose either the cost model or the revaluation model as its accounting for tangible and
intangible fixed assets. In this respect, Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if applicable. The useful lives and residual values are evaluated
annually. The Company chose to apply the cost model meaning that costs relating to product development, the
development and purchase of software for internal use and other intangible assets are capitalized and subsequently
amortized over their estimated useful life.

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016 17
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Presentation of Consolidated Statement of Income

Marel presents expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Income in accordance with their function. This allows the

presentation of gross profit on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Income, which is a widely used performance

measure in the industry. The composition of the costs allocated to the individual functions is explained as follows:

- Cost of sales encompasses all manufacturing costs (including raw materials, employee benefits, and
depreciation and amortization) related to goods and services captured in net sales. They are measured at their
actual cost based on “first in, first out” or weighted average cost;

- Selling and marketing expenses relate to the selling and marketing of goods and services;

- Research and development expenses consist of:

o research, which is defined as original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of
gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding; and

o development, which is defined as the application of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or
(re-)design for the production of new or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes,
systems or services before the start of commercial production or use;

- General and administrative expenses relate to the strategic and governance role of the general management of
the Company as well as the representation of Marel as a whole in the financial, political or business community.
General and administrative expenses also relate to business support activities of staff departments that are not
directly related to the other functional areas.

Presentation of Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Under IFRS, an entity shall report cash flows from operating activities using either the direct method (whereby major
classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments are disclosed) or the indirect method (whereby profit or loss
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments, and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows). In this
respect, the Company chose to prepare the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows using the indirect method.

2.2 Consolidation

Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the
Group. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net
assets acquired.

Acquisitions by Marel as part of business combinations will result in recognition of goodwill and other intangible
assets. The amounts assigned to the acquired assets and liabilities are based on assumptions and estimates about
their fair values. In making these estimates, management consulted independent, qualified appraisers if appropriate.
A change in assumptions and estimates could change the values allocated to certain assets and their estimated
useful lives, which could affect the amount or timing of charges to the Consolidated Statement of Income, such as
amortization of intangible assets.

Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a purchase is recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Income immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt
or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts are generally recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured and settlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise,
subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

If share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required to be exchanged for awards held by the
acquiree’s employees (acquiree’s award), then all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards is
included in measuring the consideration transferred in the business combinations This determination is based on the
market-based measure of the replacement awards compared with the market-based measure of the acquiree’s
awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to pre-combination service.

Details of the acquisition of MPS Holding IIl B.V. are disclosed in note 4.
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Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the
date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Non-controlling Interests

Non-Controlling Interests (“NCI”) are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at
the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it de-recognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, and any
non-controlling interests and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Income. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions and non-controlling interests

Transactions that result in changes in ownership interests while retaining control are accounted for as transactions
with equity holders in their capacity as equity holders. As a result, no gain or loss on such changes is recognized in
the Consolidated Statement of Income but rather in Equity. Also, no change in the carrying amounts of assets
(including goodwill) or liabilities is recognized as a result of such transactions. This approach is consistent with NCI
being a component of Equity.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over the
financial and operating policies. A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the
Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its liabilities.

Interests in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are initially recognized
at cost, which includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Consolidated Financial Statements
include the Group’s share of the profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) of equity-accounted
investees, until the date on which significant influence or joint control ceases.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Income as part of Other results relating to investments in associates.

2.3 Segment information

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's
other components. Business activities reported in the core industries reflect the recurring operational activities of
those segments. All operating segments' operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's CEO and strategic
decisions are based on these operating segments.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the respective functional currencies of Group entities, and from
there into the Group's reporting currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are revaluated.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Income, except when deferred in equity as permanent loan, as qualifying cash flow
hedges and as qualifying net investment hedges as explained in note 2.14. Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents as well as all other foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognized immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Income within 'Finance income' or 'Finance costs'.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position;

— income and expenses for each Consolidated Statement of Income are translated at average exchange
rates, unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions;
and

— translation results of the consolidation of subsidiaries reporting in foreign currencies, as well as a currency
revaluation related to financing of subsidiaries are recognized as a separate component of Equity
(Translation reserve).

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income and accumulated in Translation reserve. When a foreign operation is partially disposed off or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in Other Comprehensive Income are recognized in the Consolidated
Statement of Income for the period as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

In case of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, the relevant proportionate share of the translation difference is allocated to
the Non-Controlling Interests. When a foreign operation is disposed off such that control, significant influence or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the Translation reserve related to that foreign operation is reclassified to
Consolidated Statement of Income as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes off only part of
its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining control, the relevant proportion of the
cumulative amount is reattributed to Non-Controlling Interests. When the Group disposes of only part of its
investment in an associate or joint venture that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant influence or
joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to Other Comprehensive Income.

2.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the sale of goods and services net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts,
after eliminating sales within the Group. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific criteria have been met. The amount of revenue is
considered to be “not reliably measurable” until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifics of each arrangement.
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Revenue from fixed-price contracts for delivering designed services and solutions is recognized under the percentage
of completion (“POC”) method. Under the POC method, revenue is generally recognized based on the services
performed and direct expenses incurred to date as a percentage of the total services to be performed and total
expenses to be incurred.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and the effective
rate over the period to maturity.

When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income.

2.6 Production contracts
Production costs are recognized when incurred.

When the outcome of a production contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be
profitable, contract revenue is recognized over the period of the contract. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a production contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognized only to the
extent of production costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.

The Group uses the ‘percentage of completion method’ to determine the appropriate amount to recognize in a given
period. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the contract costs incurred up to the reporting date as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection with future activity on a
contract are excluded from contract costs in determining the stage of completion. They are presented as inventories,
prepayments or other assets, depending on their nature.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which costs incurred plus recognized profits or less recognized losses exceeds progress billings.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amount due to customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognized profits or less recognized losses.

2.7 Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially obtained all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of
the fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other long-term borrowings.
The interest element of the lease payment is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Income over the lease period
S0 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term.

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the Consolidated Statement of Income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

In those cases where the Group is the lessor of a finance lease, the finance lease is recorded in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position as a receivable, at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The Finance
income is recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of
return on the lessor’s net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease. Assets held by the Group for
operating leases are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position according to the nature of the
asset. Operating lease income is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income over the lease term on a
straight line basis.
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2.8 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (stock options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the stock options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the stock options granted, excluding the impact
of any non-market service and performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of stock options that are expected to vest. The total amount expensed is recognized
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At reporting date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of stock options that are expected to vest based on
the non-market vesting conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
Consolidated Statement of Income, with a corresponding adjustment to Equity. The proceeds received net of any
directly attributable transaction costs are credited to Share capital (nominal value) and Share premium when the
stock options are exercised. The fair value of the employee stock options granted is measured using the Black-
Scholes formula. Measurement inputs include share price on measurement date, exercise price of the stock options,
expected volatility based on weighted average historic volatility adjusted for changes expected due to publicly
available information, weighted average expected life of the instruments based on historical experience and general
stock option holder behavior, expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate based on government bonds. Service
and non-market performance conditions attached to the transactions are not taken into account in determining fair
value.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Under some circumstances, a liability for key employee benefits in the form of profit sharing and bonus plans is
recognized in other provisions when it is management intention to settle the liability and at least the condition is met
that there is a formal plan and the amounts to be paid are determined before the time of issuing the financial
statements.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

Pension plans

Marel has several pension plans in accordance with local rules and conditions. Based on IAS 19, Employee Benefits,
only one arrangement with regards to early retirement rights can be classified as defined benefit pension plan until
the moment of settlement expected in 2020 (VPL in the Netherlands). Two other defined benefit obligations refer to
jubilee rights in the Netherlands and the postretirement medical benefit plan in the United States of America. Because
of their non-material character, these arrangements are not disclosed separately.

For the majority of its employees, the Group has pension plans classified as defined contribution plans. Obligations
relating to defined contribution pension plans are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Income as employee
remuneration expenses when the contributions are payable. Contributions paid in advance are presented as assets
to the extent that cash repayment or a reduction in future contributions is available.

2.9 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the Consolidated Statement
of Income except to the extent that it relates to business combinations, or items recognized directly in Shareholders'
equity or in Other Comprehensive Income. In case of recording directly in Shareholders’ equity, the tax on this item is
included in deferred taxes; the net amount is recognized in Shareholders’ equity.
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The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Deferred tax is not recognized for:

e temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

e temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent
that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

e taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized. Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans for
individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

2.10 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. All property, plant and equipment is measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, except for land, which is shown at cost less
impairment. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Income in the period in which they are
incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
each asset to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as follows:

S I o To I= 1o (o N o 1N 71 o [T Vo 1= RPN 30-50 years
- Plant and MacChiNery.........oooiiioiiiii s 4-15 years
- Vehicles and EQUIPMENT.........oiiiiiiiiie ettt 3-7 years

Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset or to the date of the next major
renovation, whichever is sooner. Equipment included in rented buildings is depreciated over the remaining useful life
of the related equipment or over the remaining rental period, whichever is sooner.

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are recognized
within other operating income (expenses) in the Consolidated Statement of Income.
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Borrowing cost is expensed as incurred except when directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Such borrowing cost is capitalized
as part of the cost of the asset when it is probable that it will result in future economic benefits to the entity and the
cost can be measured reliably.

2.11 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Units (“CGUs”) for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business combinations in which the
goodwill arose.

Technology, research and development
Technology has been acquired as part the acquisition of MPS (refer to note 4). Technology costs have a finite useful
life and are capitalized and amortized using the straight line method over the period of 20 years.

Research expenditure is recognized as an expense as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects relating to
the design and testing of new or improved products are recognized as intangible assets when it is probable that the
project will generate future economic benefits, considering its commercial and technological feasibility, costs can be
measured reliably and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell
the asset. Other development expenditures are recognized as an expense as incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Development costs previously recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.
Development costs that have a finite useful life and that have been capitalized are amortized from the
commencement of the commercial production of the product on a straight-line basis over the period of its expected
benefit, not exceeding five years

Customer relationships, patents & trade name
Customer relationships have been acquired as part of the acquisition of MPS and are capitalized and amortized using
the straight line method over their useful life of 20 years.

Expenditure to acquire patents, trademarks and licenses is capitalized and amortized using the straight-line method
over their useful lives, but not exceeding 8 years, or 11 years in case of trademarks.

Other intangible assets
Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products
controlled by the Group are recognized as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:
i. itis technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

ii. management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

iii. there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

iv. it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

v. adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software

product are available; and
vi. the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be measured reliably.

Directly attributable costs capitalized as part of the software product include the software development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognized as intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful
lives, which can vary from 3 to 5 years.
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General

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income as incurred.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Intangible assets with an indefinite use or that are not depreciated are tested annually for impairment.

2.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffer
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. Assets held for sale which
are valued at fair value, are reviewed at each reporting date.

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than inventories and
deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Cash Generating Units
(“CGU"). Goodwill arising from business combinations is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income. They are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in
the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

2.13 Financial instruments

Financial instruments other than derivatives

The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, held-to-maturity financial assets, loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired. Management determines the
classification at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or is designated as
such upon initial recognition. Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages
such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy. Upon initial recognition attributable transaction costs are
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income. If the
Group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then such financial assets are classified as
held-to-maturity.
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Held-to-maturity financial assets

If the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then such financial assets are
classified as held to maturity. Held-to-maturity financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses. Any sale or reclassification of a more
than insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments not close to their maturity would result in the reclassification
of all held-to-maturity investments as available for sale, and prevent the Group from classifying investment securities
as held to maturity for the current and the following two financial years.

Loans and receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date.
These are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s receivables comprise ‘trade receivables’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position and are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents can include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are recognized initially at fair value and included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the reporting date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently carried at fair value.

Fair value measurement

The fair values of quoted assets are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of
recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same and discounted cash
flow analysis refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

The fair value of investments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each
reporting date. Further information is included in note 24 Financial instruments and risks.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss — is removed from Equity and recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the period. Impairment losses recognized in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the period on equity instruments are not reversed through the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the period.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables is assumed to approximate their fair values due to
the short-term nature of trade receivables. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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2.14 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
revaluated at their fair value. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately if the economic characteristics and risk of the host contract and the embedded derivative are not directly
closely related.

The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
The Group designates certain derivatives as either:
- Hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction (cash flow hedge); or
- Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation (net investment hedge); or
- Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging transactions. The
Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an on-going basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items.

Movements on the hedge reserve in equity are shown in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity. The full
fair value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining hedged item is
more than 12 months and as a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than
12 months. Trading derivatives are classified as current asset or liabilities.

(i) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognized in Other Comprehensive Income and presented in the Hedge reserve in Equity. The profit or loss relating
to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Income within Finance income
or Finance costs.

Amounts accumulated in Equity are recycled in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the period in the periods
when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for example,
inventory or non-current assets) the gains and losses previously deferred in Equity are transferred from Equity and
included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognized in cost of
goods sold in case of inventory or in depreciation in case of non-current assets.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in Equity at that time remains in equity and is recognized when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in Equity is immediately transferred to the
Consolidated Statement of Income within Finance income or Finance costs.

(if) Net investment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on
the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in Other Income and presented in
the Hedge reserve in Equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the
Consolidated Statement of Income within Finance income or Finance costs.

Gains and losses accumulated in Equity are included in the Consolidated Statement of Income when the foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold.

(iii) Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any of these
derivative instruments are recognized immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Income within Finance income or
Finance costs.
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2.15 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of historical cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method and an adjustment to net realizable value is considered for items, which have not moved during the
last 12 months. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprise raw materials, direct labor, other direct
costs and related production overheads based on normal operating capacity but exclude borrowing costs. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and any
applicable variable selling expenses.

2.16 Assets held for Sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for-sale if it is highly
probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to remaining assets and liabilities on a pro
rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefits and
investment property, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group’s other accounting policies.
Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for sale and subsequent gains or losses on re-measurement are
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Once classified as assets held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortized
or depreciated.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or stock options are shown in Shareholders' equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from Equity attributable to the
Company's shareholders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury
shares and are presented in the treasury share reserve. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects is included within Share premium.

Private placements need to be approved by the shareholders in the Company‘s Annual General Meeting. Based on
such resolution, where the shareholders waive their pre-emptive rights, the Board of Directors can approve for a
private placement.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. A provision for restructuring is recognized when the Group has approved a
detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been announced publicly.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are
not recognized for future operating losses.

The Group gives guarantee on certain products and undertakes to repair or replace items that fail to perform
satisfactorily. If the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. A provision for
guarantee commitments is recognized when the underlying product and services are sold based on historical
warranty data and a weighting of possible outcomes against their associated probabilities.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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2.19 Standards issued but not yet effective

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective have not been early
adopted by the Group.

There were no standards or amendments to existing standards which had an effective date on 1 January 2016.

The following new standards apply to the Group’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. However the Group has not early adopted the following new standards in
preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements:

- IFRS 9 Financial instruments (1 January 2018)

- IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (1 January 2018)

- IFRS 16 Leases (1 January 2019)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

In July 2014 the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments. The new version includes revised requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets and regulations on the impairment of financial instruments; with the new “expected loss model” losses are
recognized earlier because both existing and expected losses are recognized. The new regulations must be applied
for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2018. In general they must be applied retrospectively, but various
transition options are allowed and earlier application is permitted. The European Union has endorsed the standard.

Currently, Management is not able to finally assess what impact adoption of the standard will have, however, the
impact of this standard is expected to have no or a hon-material effect on the Group’s Consolidated Financial
Statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In May 2014 the IASB issued the new standard IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The purpose of
the new standard on revenue recognition is to bring together the large number of existing guidelines contained in
various standards and interpretations. At the same time it establishes uniform core principles to be applied to all
industries and all types of revenue transactions. A 5-step model is used to determine at which point in time or over
which period of time revenues are to be recognized and in what amount. The standard also includes further detailed
guidance and extended disclosure requirements.

In April 2016 clarifications to IFRS 15 were issued relating mainly to the identification of separate performance
obligations, the definition of principal and agent as well as the recognition of income from licenses. The clarifications
have not yet been endorsed by the European Union.

The standard is effective for financial reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018; earlier application is
permitted. Marel has decided not to opt for early application of IFRS 15. The transition guidance of IFRS 15 permits a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach on initial application. Given the status of our implementation
project, as set out below, the Group will decide on which transition option to use in the course of the 2017 financial
year.

In 2016 an IFRS 15 implementation project was launched. The project comprises two phases: Phase 1 involves an
initial analysis of the impact of the guidance of IFRS 15 at the level of the 3 operating segments. Marel is still in the
middle of this analysis phase. The results of the initial impact analysis will be verified at segment and company level
with reference to defined contract types. Based on the contract analysis, a detailed concept will be developed for the
transition of revenue recognition to the new requirements of IFRS 15, also including the need, if any, for adjustments
to existing IT processes/systems, if any. The subsequent Phase 2 of the project, mainly relating to the 2017 financial
year, will serve particularly to implement the initial IT process/system adjustments, if any, identified in Phase 1 and to
provide training for the Group companies in handling the new requirements of IFRS 15.

When applying the IFRS 15 criteria for revenue recognition over time, the timing of revenue recognition may be
deferred compared to the revenue recognition using the percentage of completion method in accordance with IAS 11,
Construction Contracts.

Balance sheet extension might result from the capitalization of incremental cost of obtaining a contract, especially
sales commissions, which will be capitalized for new contracts and amortized over the contract period. Currently
sales commissions are expensed when incurred.

Currently, as Marel is still in the process of assessing, a final conclusion on the impact of the standard on the
Consolidated Financial Statements can not be provided at this stage.

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016 29
All amounts in EUR*1000 unless otherwise stated.



Cmarel

IFRS 16 Leases

In January 2016 the IASB issued the new standard IFRS 16 Leases, which is to replace the current lease standard
IAS 17. Central to the new standard is that the lessee must report all leases and associated contractual rights and
obligations on the balance sheet. The current requirement to differentiate between finance leases and operating
leases under IAS 17 will therefore no longer apply for lessees. Under IFRS 16 for all leases the lessee must
recognize a lease liability on the balance sheet in the present value of future lease payments of the respective lease
plus directly allocable costs and at the same time recognize a corresponding right of use to the underlying asset.
Over the term of the lease, the lease liability is adjusted using financial mathematics methods — similar to the rules for
finance leases under the current IAS 17 — and the right of use is depreciated. The accounting for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets has been simplified. For lessors, the rules of the new standard are almost identical to
those of IAS 17. Leases in which all material risks and opportunities from the asset are transferred are classified as
finance leases, all other leases as operating leases.

Application of the new standard is mandatory for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Earlier
application is permitted as long as IFRS 15 is also applied. The European Union has not yet endorsed the standard.

IFRS 16 will have an impact on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as both the assets (right to use the
underlying asset) and liabilities (lease liability in the present value of future lease payments of the respective lease
plus directly allocable costs) will increase. Management is however not able to finally assess what impact adoption of
the standard will have — if endorsed by the European Union in the current version.
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3. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The actual results will, by definition, seldom be exactly
equal to the related accounting estimates used.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Purchase price adjustments as a result of the acquisition of MPS

Acquisitions by Marel as part of business combinations, which will be accounted for by the acquisition method, will
result in recognition of goodwill and other intangible assets. The amounts assigned to the acquired assets and
liabilities are based on assumptions and estimates about their fair values. In making these estimates, management
consulted independent, qualified appraisers if appropriate. A change in assumptions and estimates could change the
values allocated to certain assets and their estimated useful lives, which could affect the amount or timing of charges
to the Consolidated Statement of Income, such as amortization of intangible assets.

(b) Estimated impairment

The Group tests annually whether financial and non-financial assets, including goodwill, have suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2.12 and 2.13. The recoverable amounts of Cash
Generating Units have been determined based on value in use calculation. These calculations require the use of
estimates (note 14).

(c) Income taxes and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

(d) Fair value of derivatives and other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgment to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each reporting date. The Group uses
discounted cash flow analysis for available-for-sale financial assets that are not traded in active markets.

(e) Capitalized development cost

The recoverability of the capitalized development cost is tested regularly and is subject to the annual impairment
tests, to verify if expected future economic benefits justify the values captured in the intangible fixed assets. The
Group uses discounted cash flow analysis for this purpose.

(f) Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage of completion method in accounting for its revenues for production contracts. Use of
the percentage of completion method requires the Group to estimate the stage of completion to date as a proportion
of the total work to be performed.

In the following table the book values of the assets and liabilities which include an element of estimation are

disclosed.
2016 2015
Notes Assets  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities

GOOAW ...t e 14 635,180 - 389,407 -

Other intangible assets 14 277,458 - 107,018 -
Current and deferred iNCOME taXES.........coocvvieeeiiivieeee e 16 7,343 72,539 10,029 19,164
Financial INStIUMENTS.........ociiiiie et 24 502 4,946 - 3,057
Assets & liabilities held for sale.............ccooeeveeiiiieiiieccee e, 19 - - 3,799 -
Production CONIaCtS........cceeeiveeiiiei et 18 36,962 150,769 17,261 78,330
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4. Acquisition MPS Holding Il B.V.

In November 2015 Marel agreed to acquire the Dutch company MPS Holding Ill B.V. and its subsidiaries. The closing
of the acquisition of MPS took place 29 January 2016.

MPS is a leading company in primary processing solutions for the pork and beef industry as well as in innovative
solutions in waste water treatment and food logistics. The acquisition enhances Marel’s position as a leading global
provider of advanced equipment and solutions to the Poultry, Fish and Meat industries and is fully in line with the
Company’s previously announced growth strategy. This acquisition strengthens and complements Marel’s full line
offering in the meat processing industry.

In accordance with IFRS 3, Business Combinations, the purchase price of MPS was allocated to identifiable assets
and liabilities acquired. Goodwill amounted to EUR 246 million. The resulting goodwill from this acquisition is primarily
related to the strategic (and cultural) fit of MPS and Marel with highly complementary product portfolios and
geographic presence. The value of goodwill and intangible assets acquired was high for the above mentioned
reasons. The goodwill is not tax deductible.

In November 2015, the Group entered into a new EUR 670 million facilities agreement with eight international banks,
led by ING bank, Rabobank and ABN Amro. The terms and conditions are generally in line with Loan Market
Association corporate standards. The new facility was utilized to repay the previous facility from 2010 as well as
providing funds for the acquisition of MPS. The facility converts the previous facility into an all senior facility, extends
the term to 2020 as well as provides funds for the acquisition of MPS. Further information is provided in note 24 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

MPS contributed EUR 166 million to revenues and affected result from operation positively.

Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets relate to the following lines in the Consolidated Statement of

Income:
2016
(000 0] 7= 1= PSPPSR PR PPPRTR 15,202
Selling and MArketing EXPENSES........c.oiiiiiiiieii e bbb bn e 6,908
Research and deVvelopmENt EXPENSES. .......uiii ittt ettt b e et e nbeesaeesbeenanesaeeenneens 2,475
24,585

EUR 15.2 million related to the fair value lift up on the order back log, EUR 9.4 million to amortization of identified
intangible assets and a tax effect of EUR 6.1 million from the period from acquisition to 31 December 2016. The order
backlog will be fully amortized mid-2017, the brand names have been amortized before the end of 2016 and the other
identified intangible assets will be amortized in 20 years.

Under IFRS 3, up to one year from the acquisition date, the initial accounting for business combinations needs to be
adjusted to reflect additional information that has been received about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date and would have affected the measurement of amounts recognized as of that date. As a result of such
adjustments the values of assets and liabilities recognized may change in the one-year period from the acquisition
date which did not result in adjustments to the opening balance sheet of MPS. The Purchase Price Allocation of MPS
was finalized in the course of the financial year.
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The following table summarizes the major classes of consideration transferred, and recognized amounts of assets

and liabilities acquired.

Property, plant and EQUIPIMENL...........ciiiii e s
Other INtANGIDIE ASSELS ..o it et e et e e st e e e abbe e e bbee e sabeeebeeesnrneeann
YT a1 (0 1= STOU T STSTRt
Trade and Other FECEIVADIES..........ooii ettt et et ne e
Cash and CASh EQUIVAIBNTS............oiiiiieie e st e e e e e e teesreesneeenteenaeesseesraeanseenseenneens
FNEoT o) €= Toto [ L =T o FO PO UPT TR PPPTPPTP

Long-term debt, Current @and NON-CUIMTENT............cuiiiiiiiiie ettt nbe e st e st
Deferred and other tax liabilities
o 0o (U1 o] T oo = o] £ S PRRP PRI
Provisions, CUrTENt @and NON=CUITENL.........uuuuririeieiiieieei et e eeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e babasaaaseeaeseeeeeeeeaeaeaaeaaeeeesaeesesesesnnans
Trade and Other PAYADIES..........oiiiiieeieie ettt et ese e s aee e eeeteenbeesneeenteenteeneeenneenneas
= Lo T LTSI =T 012 0 Yo (USRS

TOtal NET IdENTITIEA AS S TS ..uuiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e et e e e e e et e e e e e e ebbaeeeeseabraeeeesansbeseeessasbeseeessassres

Consideration paid in cash for the transaction on 29 January 2016...........cccccvviieiienieenieieeee e
CoNSIAEration tranNSTEITE . ....coii ettt e esae e sneene e

GOOAW Il 0N @CGUISTTION .ttt ettt b e sb e sttt e st e e b et enae e s bt et e e nbeesbeennnean
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17,960
198,979
16,693
22,229

18,384

274,245

92,782
51,231
43,649

9,534

27,593

224,789

49,456

295,078

295,078

245,622
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5. Segment information

Operating segments
The identified operating segments comprise the three industries, which are the reporting segments. These operating
segments form the basis for managerial decision taking. The following summary describes the operations in each of
the Group’s reportable segments:
i Poultry processing: Our poultry processing product range offers integrated systems for processing broilers,
turkeys and ducks;
i. Fish processing: Marel provides advanced equipment and systems for salmon and whitefish processing,
both farmed and wild, onboard and ashore;
iii. Meat processing: Our Meat Industry specializes in the key processes of slaughtering, deboning and
trimming, case ready food service and bacon processing;
iv. The 'Others' segment includes the holding companies as well as any revenues, result from operations and
assets which do not belong to the three core industries.

The reporting entities are reporting their revenues per operating segment based on the industry for which the
customer is using Marel’'s product range. Therefore inter-segment revenues do not exist, only intercompany revenues
within the same segment.

Results are monitored and managed at the operating segment level, up to the result from operations. The Group’s
CEO reviews the internal management reports of each segment on a monthly basis. Fluctuations between quarters
are mainly due to timing of receiving orders and completion of orders. Decisions on tax and financing structures
including cash and cash equivalents are taken at a corporate level, therefore no financial income and expenses nor
tax are allocated to the operating segments. The profit or loss per operating segment is the adjusted result from
operations (before refocusing costs and amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets); finance costs and taxes
are reported in the column Total.

Intercompany transactions are entered into at arm’s length terms and conditions comparable to those available to
unrelated parties. Information on assets per operating segment is reported; however, decisions on liabilities are taken
at a corporate level and as such are not included in this disclosure.

Until 1 January 2016 the Company was reporting four operating segments: next to the above mentioned operating
segments the segment Further Processing was used. The Company has changed its internal reporting structure of
the segments and the allocation of operating expenses to three operating segments (Poultry, Fish and Meat) from

1 January 2016 to reflect the new organizational structure. Allocation to these three operating segments is mainly
done based on a detailed review of equipment revenues and installed base for segments where the customers
operate in. The Company is now managed on the basis of three industries with functions that work across all
segments to effectively manage business operations. Comparative amounts in this note to the Consolidated Financial
Statements have been restated. The change into three operating segments does not have any impact on
consolidated revenue, operational result or net result.

The segment information for the period ended 31 December 2016 is as follows:

Poultry Fish Meat Others Total
Third Party REVENUES ......c.cciviieiicieececce e 514,210 127,055 320,431 7,975 969,671
Adjusted result from operations ........cccceeereriinvenenn 85,278 3,890 47,809 2,384 139,361
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets............. (24,585)
Result from operationsS........cccocveiieiieniieniiesicnc e 114,776
Finance costs - net (25,287)
Result before iNCOmMe taX..........ccoveeriniiieneieeeceseee 89,489
INCOME TAX .. .teeiieiiie ettt (13,645)
Net result for the period 75,844
ASSEES .ttt 670,919 106,027 560,183 55,299 1,392,428
Depreciation and amortization... (19,280) (5,281) (36,038) (69) (60,668)
Of w hich Impairments..........ccoceeiriieniene e (2,132) (230) (3,094) - (5,456)
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The segment information for the period ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:

Poultry Fish Meat Others Total

Third Party REVENUES ......ccciiiiciiicccee e 498,129 141,337 167,576 11,560 818,602
Adjusted result from operations .......cccccceeevienieniennen. 84,225 11,667 7,753 (7,062) 96,583
Refocusing COStS.......cocviieeieeiieninne (14,970)
Result from operations 81,613
FINANCE COSES - NEL....oviiiiiiiieiee e (11,907)
Result before iNCOME taX.........ccoveeeveeeceeeecree e 69,706
INCOME TBX . ettt (13,010)
Net result for the period 56,696
AASSELS ..ttt 604,410 106,296 133,284 94,165 938,155
Depreciation and amortization.............ccoceeeererenenieeneneneenns (20,989) (5,554) (7,915) (4,741) (39,199)
Of which IMpairments...........cccocveiiiiniieecese e (1,564) (417) (585) (3,226) (5,792)

Geographical information

The Group’s three operating segments operate in four main geographical areas, even though they are managed on a
global basis. The home country of the Group is Iceland. The two main operating companies are located in Iceland
and The Netherlands, however, these companies realize most of their revenues in other countries. The other main
operating company in the United States of America is realizing most of their revenues in North America.

Within the segments and within the operating companies Marel is not relying on major customers.

Revenues, allocated based on country where the customer is located 2016 2015
ICEIAND. ...ttt h bbbt a bbb R e Rt b bR b bt ae b nene et e 7,687 9,905
The NETNEIIANGS ...ttt e e et e e et e e e ebe e e s eaee e eabeeeabteeeabeeesseaeans 30,857 19,842

Europe other

444,611 320,860
North America 244,572 252,055
OtNEI COUNTTIES.....ecteetie ettt ettt ettt s e st e st e e b e e s b e e s teeeaeeeabeaateesaeesbeesbseesbeesbeeteesssesanesanaanns 241,944 215,940

969,671 818,602

Total assets excluding Cash and cash equivalents 2016 2015
(o711 Vo OSSPSR 117,414 133,080
The NETNEIIANGS......ccevii ettt eette e et e e et e e e eba e e s eaeeeeneeeebteesabeeesseeeaas 935,519 431,416
LT doT o0 ] 1T PO UORRU PR 121,816 112,451
[N o] 1 N 417 o T PSSP PRSP UPTPPR 150,879 133,975
OENEI COUNTIIES ...ttt b ekt e bt a bt e bt e bt e s he e ebe e eab e e bt et e e nneenanennneenne 21,277 34,257

1,346,905 845,179

Total assets exclude the Group’s cash pool which the Group manages at central level.

Capital expenditure 2016 2015
[o1=1F= T o Lo TSP UU PR 6,927 3,774
THE NETNEIIANGS ...t e st e e et e e et e e e be e e e abe e e eateeesteeeseaeeeenneas 24,120 20,096
BUTOPE ONET ...ttt bbbt bbbt b et e bbbt ettt nb e b e 7,113 1,139
LIV o T a1 017 o7 S 5,580 3,235
(019 =] o oo 10 (1= 1 T PP U PP RPPR 567 687

44,307 28,931
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6. Refocusing costs

In the Consolidated Statement of Income and note 5 Segment information, refocusing costs are shown separately in
order to give transparency on the ordinary business, excluding these costs. Refocusing costs are defined as the costs
in relation to the Simpler, Smarter & Faster program of the Group. This program started in January 2014 and was
successfully concluded in 2015 with the following goals:

e Combine business units that serve the same customer needs and rely on the same technical capabilities.

e  Optimize the manufacturing footprint to balance utilization of resources within the Company.

The refocusing costs consist of:

2016 2015
Streamlining Sales, Service, Innovation and AdmINISTration.............cccccveeriieiiiee e - 1,328
Manufacturing and Product portfolio Optimization...............ccceeieiiiiiiiiiissees e - 11,507
(@13 =] goTo ) TSP PSRN OOUSPRRRRRIRt - 2,135
- 14,970
By nature of cost:
2016 2015
Personnel related (severance, OUIPIACEMENT)........ccocuii it - 5,795
Relocation / building FElated............ceeiiiiiiiie et - 600
Depreciation and amortization (including impairments)... - 1,641
DIVESTMENL. ...ttt b bbbt bttt b e e bbbt n e r e - 3,020
(@1 g[S g oT0 1) < OPPRPRRRRY - 3,914
- 14,970
Refocusing costs are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Income as follows:
2016 2015
(001 o) Y- 1RO RRRORSRRN - 7,360
Selling and MAarketing EXPENSES .........ui i iiee ettt ettt e et e e sbe e sb e e e asbe e e aaseeabeeeaaabeesbaeeanneens - 878
Research and development EXPENSES. ........oiiiiiiiieeiieriee ettt saeesneesnees - 74
General and admiNISIrativVe EXPENSES. ......coiuiiiiiieaiieeeitieeatee et esteeestee e asbee e sareaassbeeasabeeanbaeeanseens - 3,638
Other operating INCOME / (EXPENSES).....ciuuiiieeieeieesieestee e aee e eeesieesteesreesneeaeeaseenseesseesseeaneeseeans - 3,020
- 14,970
7. Expenses by nature
2016 2015
(00153 Ao o T To o 53R o] (o RSP P RRPRRR PPN 338,717 301,011
EMPIOYEE DENETIES ...ttt 359,197 292,384
Depreciation, amortization and IMPaIMMENT..............oiiiiiiiiiie e seee e 60,668 38,078
Maintenance and rent of buildings and eqUIPMENL...........c.oiiiiieiienie e 15,155 14,028
(0,101 USRS 81,158 91,488

854,895 736,989

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016 36
All amounts in EUR*1000 unless otherwise stated.



Cmarel

8. Net Finance costs

Finance costs: 2016 2015
Interest on borrow ings (20,703) (10,665)

INterest 0N fiNANCE IBASES...........cooiiiiiiii e (1) 2
Other fINANCE EXPENSES.......uiiiiiie ittt et et e e e bt e e s te e e e bbeesbeeeanteeeanbeessnteeeaneeans (5,214) (2,538)
{0 o] o] = U T g F= T g ot oo ] £ T PP PPR (25,918) (13,205)
Finance income:

INMEEIEST INCOME. ...ttt ettt bbbttt h b er bt e et ne e nne s 541 292
Net foreign exchange tranSaction GAINS...........ccuiriiiieiiie i 90 1,006
Subtotal Finance income.... 631 1,298
NEL FINANCE COSTS...uiiiiiiie ittt ettt ettt et e e s bt e e s s te e e abbee e esbeeebbeesbbeeebbeesbaeesnneaeans (25,287) (11,907)

The Group’s net finance cost increased significantly between years as borrowings increased due to the acquisition of
MPS, refer to note 4. Borrowings increase by EUR 213 million between years. Interest on borrowings in 2016
includes a one off repayment fee (EUR 2.4million) on junior loan acquired in the first quarter of 2015. Other finance
costs in 2016 increased due to new capitalized finance charges in connection with the new facility as well as
revaluation of the embedded derivative decrease finance cost by EUR 0.8million.

9. Staff costs

2016 2015
SAIAMNES ANG W AgES. ... eeeiitte ittt ettt sttt ettt e e bt e s be e et e e sae e s et e beeeabeesbeeanbeesbeeanbeeaseeenbeenteaanne 284,370 231,203
REIALEA EXPENSES......cviiiieiteeiieie ettt s bttt e e sae et e s be e st e s be e st e bt sae e et sbeenteebeententenneennenne 34,903 27,473
Expenses related to equity-settled share-based payments............ccoviiieiiiiie e 288 249

Post retirement costs 19,913 16,473

339,474 275,398

Staff costs are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Income as follows:

2016 2015
COST Of SAIBS....ueieiiieieeit ettt ettt ne s 153,040 131,078
Selling and MArketing EXPENSES........ociiiiiiiiie ittt ree et be e sb e e sbeebeessbeesteessbeesbeesneeenees 87,633 72,923
Research and development EXPENSES. .....cc.ui ittt be e s 52,283 40,361

General and administrative expenses 46,518 31,036

339,474 275,398

Average number of Full Time Equivalents 4,599 3,886

10. Fees to Auditors

2016 2015
Audit Of fINANCIAl STALEMENTS ..ot 1,141 926
Other services-audit FEIAtEA. .............oi i 98 64
Other services 238 168
1,477 1,158
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11. Income tax

Income tax recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income

[N =T = PRSP PRRPRN
[0 =T =T [ = O P SBPTSBY

2016 2015
(15,290)  (10,752)
1,645 (2,258)

(13,645)  (13,010)

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted

average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

Reconciliation of effective income tax 2016 2015

% %
Result before iINCOME taX.......cccveiiiiiiee ettt 89,489 69,706
Income tax using Iceland rate.............ccooeeriiiiiiniceseee e (17,898) 20.0 (13,941) 20.0
Effect of tax rates in other jurisdiCtions. ..., (4,589) 5.1 (5,080) 7.3
Weighted average applicable taX............ccveiiiiiiiiieieee e (22,487) 25.1 (19,021) 27.3
FX effect ICeland....... oo 1,196 (1.3) 600 (0.9
R&D taX INCENTIVES. .....eeviiiietisiieie sttt 5,459 (6.1) 3,839 (5.5)
Permanent diffEerenCeS. ... ..covivieiieee e 428 (0.5) 72 (0.2)
Tax 10SSes (UN)FECOGNIZEM. .......coiiiiiieiiieiieeeee e - - (188) 0.3
(Impairment)/reversal of taxX l0SSES........cccoooiiiiiiiiiniiiee e 772 (0.9) 620 (0.9)
Effect of tax rate Changes.........ccooieieriii i 342 (0.4) 304 (0.4)
(@10 T=T TSRV U SRRSO 645 (0.7) 764 (1.1)
Tax charge included in the profit or loss for the period (13,645) 15.2 (13,010) 18.7

The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of

many factors, including interpretations of tax laws and prior experience.

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016
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12. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the period, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held
as treasury shares.

Basic earnings per share (EUR cent per share)

2016 2015
Net result attributable to SharehOIders.............oo i 75,791 56,696
Weighted average number of outstanding shares in issue (thousands)..........ccccoceeeriieenienennn. 715,362 715,223
Basic earnings per share (EUR CeNt Per SNAre)........ccooiueiiiiiiiiiiiee e 10.59 7.93

The diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company has one category of dilutive
potential ordinary shares: stock options. For the stock options a calculation is done to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market share price of the
Company'’s shares) based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding stock options. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the stock options.

Diluted earnings per share (EUR cent)
2016 2015
Net result used to determine diluted earnings Per Share...........cccoveeiieiee e 75,791 56,696

Weighted average number of outstanding shares in issue (thousands).. 715,362 715,223
Adjustments for stock options (thOUS@ANAS).........ccueieiiiiiiiiiiii e 3,566 2,593

Weighted average number of outstanding shares for diluted earnings per share (thousands)... 718,928 717,816
Diluted earnings per share (EUR CENt PEI SNAE).........eeuieiierieriesieee et ee e eeas 10.54 7.90
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13. Property, plant and equipment

At 1 January 2015

Accumulated depreciation
Net BoOK amMOUNL.........ccceiviiiiici e

Year ended 31 December 2015

Opening net booK @amOUNt ..........covvireriririeieeeeeee e
DIVESTMENES ...
Transfer betw een categories.........ccoevvrerieninieieeieiesens
Effect of movements in exchange rates...........ccccoceevevvennenee.
AAAILIONS ...
Assets held for sale.........ooovvririnicee
Impairment Charge........cocvvreeiniieeeee e
Depreciation Charge ........cccoeeeeiiinenesieeee e
Closing net book amount...........ccccoverinieneieeeee e

At 1 January 2016

Accumulated depreciation.............cccvveiiinneiiiinnsceas
Net BOOK @amOUNL........ccoiiiiirieiiciree e

Year ended 31 December 2016

Opening net bOOK @amOUNt ..........covvireriiieieeeeeeee e
DIVESTMENES ...
Transfer betw een categories..........ccovvvvrerieniinieieieieneens
Effect of movements in exchange rates...
AAILIONS ..o
Business combinations, Note 4...........ccccveeneinenncnsennenn,
Depreciation Charge ........cocoeeiriiininisieeeeee e
Closing net book amount............c.coveieiiiiieieieee e

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated depreciation
Net BoOK amMOUNL.........ccceiiiiiiciccce e

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016
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Land & Plant & Under con- Vehicles &
buildings  machinery struction  equipment Total
115,049 66,196 146 42,272 223,663
(39,768) (51,160) - (36,596)  (127,524)
75,281 15,036 146 5,676 96,139
75,281 15,036 146 5,676 96,139
(2,653) (759) - (410) (3,822)
118 40 - (158) -
1,108 389 30 (148) 1,379
2,056 1,735 3,213 1,660 8,664
(4,899) - - - (4,899)
(352) - - - (352)
(2,645) (3,388) - (2,071) (8,104)
68,014 13,053 3,389 4,549 89,005
105,966 63,510 3,389 40,807 213,672
(37,952) (50,457) - (36,258)  (124,667)
68,014 13,053 3,389 4,549 89,005
68,014 13,053 3,389 4,549 89,005
(136) (39) - (499) (674)
1,309 3,424 (5,511) 778 -
753 233 (18) 456 1,424
8,227 7,441 3,549 1,902 21,119
12,885 4,610 241 224 17,960
(2,784) (5,115) - (1,944) (9,843)
88,268 23,607 1,650 5,466 118,991
130,061 93,398 1,650 40,953 266,062
(41,793) (69,791) - (35,487)  (147,071)
88,268 23,607 1,650 5,466 118,991
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Depreciation of property, plant and equipment analyzes as follows in the Consolidated Statement of Income:

COSE OF SAIES.....eeteiiteitrt et r ettt
Selling and MArkEtiNg EXPENSES...........ciiuiirieirieeee ettt sttt se e b et st be e sbe e ssenenes
Research and developmENt EXPENSES........ccuiiiiiieieieieie ettt b et b e bt be b e

General and admiNISTrative EXPENSES......c.vvviiieirieiieriee ettt sesee e see e ste e sae e ssenenes

2016 2015
5,418 5,092
762 736
296 349
3,367 1,927
9,843 8,104

The carrying amount of the assets recognized under finance lease is EUR 91 (2015: EUR 134).

The insurance value of real estate is not materially different from the replacement value (note 26).

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016
All amounts in EUR*1000 unless otherwise stated.
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14. Intangible assets and Goodwill

Customer
Technology relations Total
& Develop-  Patents & Other Intan-
Goodwi ll[ ment costs Trademarks Intangibles gibles

At 1 January 2015
COST ottt et 387,103 139,001 54,318 25,499 218,818
Accumulated amortization...........c.ceveereeenieneenie s - (65,000) (25,466) (13,436) (103,902)
Net book amount 387,103 74,001 28,852 12,063 114,916
Year ended 31 December 2015
Opening net book amount ...........ccocviiiniinniesie e 387,103 74,001 28,852 12,063 114,916
Business combiNation............ccooueeieenienieniesee e - (1,238) - (132) (1,370)
Exchange differences........ccccoveeveevieiii e 2,304 841 1,991 (5) 2,827
AILIONS ... - 12,360 - 7,907 20,267
Impairment charge........ - (1,700) - (2,566) (4,266)
Amortization charge - (17,733) (4,202) (3,421) (25,356)
Closing net book amOUNt.........ccoevirierierinisiee e 389,407 66,531 26,641 13,846 107,018
At 1 January 2016
COST ottt et 389,407 148,735 56,842 32,665 238,242
Accumulated amortization...........c.cevvvieeneeneenieseeeenn - (82,204) (30,201) (18,819) (131,224)
Net DOOK AmMOUNL........coiviieiiieieeeie e 389,407 66,531 26,641 13,846 107,018
Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net DOOK amMOUNt .......cc.cvivericenirieieeseeeesie e 389,407 66,531 26,641 13,846 107,018
Business combinations, NOtE 4.............ceevvvveeeeeiiiiieeeeeiinnns 245,622 56,385 119,137 23,457 198,979
Exchange differences.........cccovvvveiiniieicnceecse 151 (185) (423) (294) (902)
Additions.........cccovveeeene - 15,632 33 7,523 23,188
Impairment charge - (5,456) - - (5,456)
AMOrtization Charge .........cocvvvererenieese e - (13,394) (29,658) (2,317) (45,369)
Closing net booK amouNt..............coeviinineiinencecese s 635,180 119,513 115,730 42,215 277,458
At 31 December 2016
COST ettt 635,180 214,994 177,820 63,868 456,682
Accumulated amortization...........c.cevevreeneeneenieneeeeen - (95,481) (62,090) (21,653) (179,224)
Net DOOK @mMOUNL........coviieiieieese e 635,180 119,513 115,730 42,215 277,458

Business combination relate to the acquisition of MPS. Further information on the acquisition of MPS is disclosed in

note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The additions for 2016 predominantly comprise internally generated assets of EUR 23,188 (2015: EUR 20,267) for

product development costs and for development of software products.

An impairment loss of EUR 5.5 million is reported to write-down development costs for unsuccessful development

projects (2015: EUR 4.3 million write-down development costs for unsuccessful development projects and ERP-

software no longer used).

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016
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The impairment charge in the intangible assets analyses as follows in the Consolidated Statement of Income:

2016 2015
(000 1] o T U= OSSPSR - 528
Selling and MArketing EXPENSES. .......oiviiiiiiieie ettt e e et eneebe e beenbeeees - 1,773
Research and developmENt EXPENSES. ........oiui ittt ettt b e e 5,456 1,700
General and admiNISrative EXPENSES.......cccuiaiuiiiieiieitie et eeeate et e et esteesteesaeesteeaseeasbeeeeaseesbeesseeases - 265
5,456 4,266

Amortization of intangible assets analyzes as follows in the Consolidated Statement of Income:

2016 2015
COST Of SAIBS....ccueiiiitiii ittt e e e e et e e e bee e st e e sbeeeeabeeeaabeeeabbeeesbaeesbeeesabeeesabeeeeabeeeanbeeeasrens 15,227 80
Selling and MarketiNg EXPENSES........ccviiiieriiiiiee ettt b nee b tesreeneennes 8,408 634
Research and developmENt EXPENSES. ........oiui ittt be s 16,625 18,837
General and admiNIStrative EXPENSES.......cccuiaiiirieiieiie ettt eee et ettt e saeesteeareesbesaeebeesbeesreeanes 5,109 5,805

45,369 25,356

Impairment testing

Annually goodwill is tested for impairment at the level of the Group's Cash Generating Units (“CGUs”). For Marel, the
CGUs are based on the market oriented business model, Poultry, Fish and Meat, in accordance with IFRS 8
Operating Segments. Poultry, Fish and Meat serve the customer needs in primary, secondary and further processing.
Only at the level of the operating segments the connection can be made between the businesses for which the
goodwill was originally paid and the results of the synergies after the acquisitions. The annual impairment test
includes Property, plant and equipment, Goodwill, Other intangible assets and net working capital allocated to CGUs
to determine the final recoverable amount.

The purpose of impairment testing is to determine whether the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount of
the above mentioned assets. The recoverable amount of an operating segment is determined as the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from a CGU, based on amongst others:

i the estimated future cash flows that the Group expects the CGU to earn;
. possible variations in the amount or timing of those future cash flows;
iii. the time value of money, which is reflected by using a discount rate based on the current market risk-free
rate of interest;
iv. the price for the uncertainty inherent in the CGU.

The sales growth rates and margins used to estimate future cash flows are based on management estimates that
take into account past performance and experience, external market growth assumptions and industry long term
averages. The weighted growth rate for the period 2018 to 2021 of forecasted cash flows is between 4% and 7% for
all CGUs, which is management’s base estimate. These growth rates are in line with external market predictions of
the world wide industry for providing equipment and solutions for the protein industry as well. Revenues, operating
results and cash flows beyond the 5 year forecast period are extrapolated using conservative estimated growth rates
of 1.8% as shown in the table below. The time value of money and price of uncertainty, calculated as the Weighted
Average Cost of Capital (“WACC”), are based on external market information about market risk, interest rates and
some CGU specific elements like country risk. The post-tax discount rate is calculated at CGU level and is in the
range of 7.5% - 7.7% (2015: 8.5%) for all CGUs (refer to the table below). The pre-tax discount rate for the three
CGUs is calculated in the range of 9.4% - 9.7% (2015: 10.7%).

The Goodwill impairment test performed in the fourth quarter, which was based on the numbers of 30 September
2016, exceeds the recoverable value of existing goodwill. Breakeven scenarios and the current scenario used show
that there is sufficient headroom and that there are no triggers indicating that impairment is necessary. For all three
operating segments the recoverable amount exceeds the carrying amount by a substantial amount. A stress test was
performed on the impairment tests of the CGUs where the following items have been tested: the potential changes in
increase in pre-tax discount rates, decrease in compound long-term growth rates or decrease in terminal value
growth rates. This test showed that the conclusions of these tests would not have been different if significant adverse
changes in key parameters had been assumed.

At 31 December 2016 there were no triggers which indicated that a new calculation was required.
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The key assumptions used for the impairment test in 2016 are listed below.

Poultry Fish
GOOAW Il ..ttt ettt ebe e sbeeereeaeenbeene e 335,431 27,394
Infinite Intangible assets - -
GIOW TN TALE....c.viiitiiciice ettt ettt et et ear e e aaeenas 1.8% 1.8%
Discount rate 7.7% 7.5%

Meat
272,355

1.8%
7.6%

L Weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond strategic plan period.

2 Discount rate applied to the cash flow projections.

The key assumptions used for the impairment tests in 2015 are shown in the table below:

Poultry Fish
GOOAW Il 334,565 27,160
Infinite Intangible assets 3,365 -
GrOW th FALE.....ceee i 2.0% 2.0%
DISCOUNE FALE.....cviiiieeeie ettt bbb 8.5% 8.5%

Meat
27,682
7,437
2.0%
8.5%

Y'weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond strategic plan period.

2 Discount rate applied to the cash flow projections.

Total
635,180

1.8% Y
7.6% 2

Total

389,407

10,802
2.0% Y
8.5% 2

Until 1 January 2016 the Company was reporting four operating segments: next to the operating segments Poultry,
Fish and Meat the segment Further Processing was used. The Company has changed its internal reporting structure
of the segments and the allocation of operating expenses to three operating segments (Poultry, Fish and Meat) from
1 January 2016 to reflect the new organizational structure. Comparative amounts in this note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements have been restated. For further details on segment information refer to note 5.

15. Trade receivables, Other Receivables and prepayments

Trade rECEIVADIES......ceei et e et e e e e e e e snte e e srnae e e snsaeeensaeeeesaeeennneeas
Less: write-dow n to net-realizable VaIUE..............oocvvei e

Trade reCEIVADNIES = NEL.......ccuei ittt e st e e e e e abe e e e etbe e e stbee e sabreeesareeas
LESS NON-CUITENE POITION. .....veiviieiesiesieteetestesteeeseereetesteseeseeseeseesessessesseseeseesensessesseseeseeneasessensens

Current portion of Trade receivables

Other receivables and pre-payments
PrE-PAYIMENTS ...ttt et e e s e e e s e e e s R ne e e e te e e e arr e e e nnre e e e nnneeeannee
Other TECEIVADIES ..ottt et et sab e e te e s st e e sbeesnteesseeenbeesseaanns

Total Trade receivables, Other receivables and pre-payments

2016 2015
120,617 103,512
(5,121) (3,373)
115,496 100,139
(237) (443)
115,259 99,696
5,859 7,488
26,864 21,651
32,723 29,139
148,219 129,278

All non-current receivables are due within one and five years.
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The carrying amounts of Trade receivables and Other receivables and pre-payments approximate their fair value.

Trade receivables that are less than 90 days past due are not considered impaired. As of 31 December 2016, Trade
receivables of EUR 38,088 (2015: EUR 18,483) were past due but not impaired. In 2016 the write-down of Trade
receivables to net realizable value amounted to EUR 1,364 (2015: EUR 1,317). These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. As of 31 December 2016, Trade receivables of
EUR 11,592 (2015: EUR 6,884) were tested for impairment and written down when necessary. The individually
impaired receivables mainly relate to customers, which are in unexpectedly difficult economic situations.

The ageing of Trade receivables is as follows:

2016 2015
Provision Provision
Gross for Gross for
amount Impairment amount Impairment
NOE OVEIAUE......ccviiiiiieiie ettt 70,937 - 78,145 -
Up t0 90 days OVErdUE.........ccceceeeiieiiiieiie e 38,088 - 18,483 -
Over 90 days OVErdUE.........coiuerieieiie et 11,592 (5,121) 6,884 (3,373)
120,617 (5,121) 103,512 (3,373)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s Trade receivables (current portion) are denominated in the following currencies:

2016 2015

L TSSOSO TE SO U STV U PRSRORUPN 68,880 53,325
US DOMIAT . ...tttk h bbbtk bt e et h £ e bt e bbbt bbbt e eneene 31,181 25,691
UK POUND. ..ttt b et b ekt e et b £ e bt s b b et e e e bt et e ebe b e e eneeneene 6,244 13,064
OLNET CUITENCIES ...ttt b bbbt a bt e b e b bt e bt e bt nne s 14,075 10,989
120,380 103,069

Write-dow N to net-realizable VAlUE............c.ooiiiiiieiie e (5,121) (3,373)
115,259 99,696

Movements on the Group Trade receivables impaired to net-realizable value are as follows:

2016 2015
At 1 January 3,373 2,699
Provision for receivables IMPairMmENt............coiiiiiiiiieie e 1,364 1,317
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible..............ccocooieiiiiiieee (1,471) (29)
BUSINESS COMDINALIONS.........uviiiiieei ittt e e e eeettr e e e e e et e e e e e eeeab e e e e e e e eesaabeeeeeeeseabaeseeeeseasbeseeeeeas 2,317 -
UNUSEd AMOUNTS FEVEISEU. ....c.viiuiiiiiiietiieee ettt sttt ettt sb et e e s (462) (614)
At 31 December 5,121 3,373

The impairment to net-realizable value and reversals has been included in General and administrative expenses in
the Consolidated Statement of Income.

The other classes within Other receivables and pre-payments do not contain impaired assets.
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16. Deferred income tax

Deferred income taxes are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method.

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

At 1 January 2015 (3,435)
Exchange differences and changes Within the GroUP............ccoeeiiiiiiie e 254
Consolidated Statement of Income charge (excluding tax rate change)...........cooveeieieieninie e (2,557)
Effect Of ChanQe N TAX FAIES........ccioi bbbt 299
Hedge reserve & translation reserve recognized in other Comprehensive INCOME...........coovvveierenenenieeriese e (475)
At 31 December 2015 (5,914)
At 1 January 2016 (5,914)
Exchange differences and changes within the Group............ccoeiiiinic e (27)
Consolidated Statement of Income charge (excluding tax rate change)............coveereneininien e 1,301
EFfECt Of ChANQE IN TAX FALES.....cuiiieie ittt bbbttt e b e sb e st et e be s b e e be e s b e besbesbeese et e sbesbeeneebente e 344
BUSINESS COMBDINALIONS, NOTE 4......coeiuiieiiitiiteieies ettt sttt b bbbt b st e e s st et ebe st besbe e eneneeneas (51,547)
Hedge reserve & translation reserve recognized in other Comprehensive INCOME...........covvveieieninenieenese e (272)
At 31 December 2016 (56,115)

The deferred income tax balance increased significantly between years as a result of the acquisition of MPS (refer to
note 4 for further information).

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

The deferred tax charged / (credited) in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, in Other
Comprehensive Income, during the period is as follows:

Fair value reserves in Shareholders' equity 2016 2015
- Employer's contribution social charges on stock option exercises - -
= HEOGE TESEIVE. ...ttt b bbb bbbt s ket e e bt et eb et ene s (272) (475)

(272) (475)

The deferred tax charge recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is as follows:

2016 2015
Deferred INCOME tAX ASSEES.....coiiiuiiiiiie ettt bt b e be st e e bt e besbesbeeneessesbesbeeneesbesbeanes 7,343 10,029
(63,458) (15,943)
(56,115) (5,914)

Deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realization of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. Based on future profits expected in the strategic plan the
recoverability has been tested; a reversal of EUR 772 (2015: a reversal of EUR 620) has been applied. Sensitivity
analysis on impairment of tax losses used the assumption of decreasing the forecasted profit before tax by 5%.
Based on the outcome of this calculation the impairment is not substantially affected. The Group has no
unrecognized deferred tax liabilities.
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Taxable effects of losses will expire according to below schedule:

2016 2015
Of which Of which
Total tax not  Total tax not
losses capitalised losses capitalised
LESS thaN B YEAIS....c.ecuiieeieieieiieie et 4,631 2,727 18,024 3,524
Betw €en 6 and 10 YEAIS.....c.coiiiiieieiterieeieeee ettt 43,986 - 37,062 215
MOrE than 10 YEAIS......ccuiieeieieie ettt 5,797 - 897 641
Indefinite 31,492 26,063 39,056 22,783
85,906 28,790 95,039 27,163
Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
At 1 Recognized At 31
January  inincome December
2016  statement Other” 2016 Assets Liabilites
Property, plant and equipment............cccoceninenne (5,420) (1,679) (392) (7,491) 633 (8,124)
Intangible @SSEtS.........ceiiriieerirneeire e (20,280) 4,549 (51,775) (67,506) 4,754 (72,260)
Other financial assets..........ccccoceveieniinieneieane 704 119 (263) 560 612 (52)
RECEIVADIES......coveiiiriciie e (2,239) 842 (82) (1,479) 333 (1,812)
INVENEOTIES ...ttt 2,794 879 363 4,036 4511 (475)
Current liabilities.. 1,053 1,317 42 2,412 2,467 (55)
Long term liabilities...........cccooereieniniciccice 570 (905) (20) (355) 74 (429)
Provisions for pensions............cccvevevinienenens 1,482 (977) 46 551 551 -
Provisions for reorganizations.............cccccceevuene 565 (548) 9 8 8 -
Provisions for guarantees...........cccccocevereieninnns 241 143 776 1,160 1,352 (192)
Provisions others..........cccvviiiiiieneneiee e 172 (75) 130 227 314 (87)
SUBLOAL ... (20,358) 3,665 (51,184) (67,877) 15,609 (83,486)
Subtotal tax I0SSeS........cccvvvrveerirrcereie 14,444 (2,364) (318) 11,762 17,338 (5,576)
OVerall total........covveueiriiieieeec s (5,914) 1,301 (51,502) (56,115) 32,947 (89,062)

Y Other includes the movements of assets and liabilities recognized in OCI, which includes foreign currency
translation differences, acquisitions and divestments. The significant movement in Other relates to deferred income
tax as a result of the acquisition of MPS, refer to note 4 for further information.
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Property, plant and equipment............cccoceivninne

Intangible assets...........

Other financial assets...

Receivables..................
Inventories.......

Current liabiltties............
Long term liabilities........
Provisions for pensions

Provisions for reorganizations..............cccccoeevuene
Provisions for guarantees...........ccccooevverenenens

Provisions others..........
Subtotal

Subtotal tax losses........

Overall total...................

At 1 Recognized At 31

January  inincome December
2015  statement Other? 2015 Assets Liabilites
(5,800) 238 142 (5,420) 1,708 (7,128)
(20,156) 15 (139) (20,280) 5,024 (25,304)
1,379 (214) (461) 704 758 (54)
(1,413) (793) (33) (2,239) 222 (2,461)
2,653 (154) 295 2,794 3,489 (695)
898 144 11 1,053 1,408 (355)
638 (68) - 570 605 (35)
1,134 323 25 1,482 1,485 3
12 540 13 565 565 -
374 (145) 12 241 828 (587)
78 119 (25) 172 230 (58)
(20,203) 5 (160) (20,358) 16,322 (36,680)
16,768 (2,562) 238 14,444 19,767 (5,323)
(3,435) (2,557) 78 (5,914) 36,089 (42,003)

Y Other includes the movements of assets and liabilities recognized in OCI, which includes foreign currency
translation differences, acquisitions and divestments

17. Inventories

RAW MALETIAIS ...ttt ettt s b e s st er e e r e e nbeennn e an e ne e
ST 0T 0 T=To e To o Lo USSR
FINISNEA GOOTUS. ...ttt b e b ettt b e et b e ennes

Write-dow n to net-realizable value

2016 2015
13,687 5,144
98,823 84,530
29,934 29,391

142,444 119,065

(20,194)  (19,683)

122,250 99,382

In 2016 the write-down of inventories to net-realizable value amounted to EUR 3,777 (2015: EUR 3,715).

There were no material reversals of write-downs to net realizable value. The write-downs recognized following a

recoverability analysis are included in Cost of sales.
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18. Production Contracts

2016 2015

............................................................................................................. 91 1,786
Advances received on ordered W Ork in PrOgreSS. ......ccuiiiiiieiiiiee e esiieesiee e eee e e (113,898) (62,855)

(113,807)  (61,069)

Ordered w ork in progress

Cost exceed billing
Biling exceed cost

36,962 17,261
(150,769)  (78,330)
(113,807)  (61,069)

An amount of EUR 234.0 million (2015: EUR 131.1 million) has been included in the Revenues of 2016 as included in
the Consolidated Statement of Income. For this portion of the revenues the conditions of sale of goods are not met,
therefore the IFRS treatments of construction contracts have been applied (IAS 11 Construction Contracts).
Construction contract revenue has been determined based on the percentage of completion method (cost based).

19. Assets and liabilities held for sale

In 2015, management committed to a plan to transfer production facilities from the Bornholm facility in Denmark to
other Marel locations in Denmark and Slovakia, and sell the real estate in Bornholm. The business was serving
multiple Marel segments. The real estate was presented as Assets held for sale for EUR 1.6 million as at

31 December 2015. The deal was finalized on 3 June 2015 and the assets have been transferred per
1 January 2016.

Norfo ejendomme A/S

Assets held for sale

Value 31 December 2015
Proceeds from sale of production facilities
Value 31 December 2016

In 2015, management committed to a plan to transfer production facilities from the Des Moines facility in the United
States of America to the Gainesville (Georgia) production facility in the United States of America and sell the real
estate in Des Moines. The production facility in Des Moines was serving the Meat segment. The real estate was
presented as Assets held for sale for EUR 2.2 million as at 31 December 2015 and was valued at the lower of its

carrying amount and its fair value less costs to sell. The deal was finalized and assets have been transferred prior to
31 March 2016.

Marel Meat Processing Inc.

Assets held for sale
Value 30 June 2015

............................................................................................................................................ 3,342
IMPAITNENT CRAIGE. ..ttt ettt e bt e e bt e et et e e bt e sttt e e a b b e e eab e e e eab e e e bbb e e nnb e e e aneeesnneas (1,119)
Value 31 DECEMDET 2015..... ..ottt et e e e r et e et n e e 2,223
Value 31 DECEMDET 2015.... ..ottt sr e e r et e e r e sre e e et r e e 2,223
Proceeds from sale of production facilities.... (2,223)

Value 31 December 2016
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20. Equity
Share Capital Outstanding
Ordinary Treasury  number of
shares shares shares
(thousands) (thousands) (thousands)
At 1JANUATY 2015.....cceiiiiieiiieieiesiee et 735,569 (6,958) 728,611
Treasury shares - purchased... - (31,000) (31,000)
Treasury Shares - SOI.........coviiiieiiee e e - 7,055 7,055
At 31 DECEMBET 2015, ..ot 735,569 (30,903) 704,666
100.00% 4.20% 95.80%
Treasury shares - PUrChaseq.... ..o - (4,000) (4,000)
Treasury Shares - SOI0........c.oouiiiiiiiiece et beeaeens - 13,360 13,360
At 31 December 2016 735,569 (21,543) 714,026
100.00% 2.93% 97.07%
Class of share capital: 2016 2015
NOMINAI VAIUB. ... .eeiviieetie ittt ettt ettt e e et e e tae e st e e e be e s beeeebeeeetbeeestessabeeanbeeaseeesaseessreesnreean 6,531 6,445

Share premium. 287,854 277,055

Reserve for share based PaYMENS..........civeiiiiiin e 834 864
Total Share PremMiUM FESEIVE........ciiiiiiee ettt ettt ettt sttt e sb e et e e aeesbeeeeas 288,688 277,919

The total authorized number of ordinary shares is 735.6 million shares (31 December 2015: 735.6 million shares) with
a par value of ISK 1 per share. All issued shares are fully paid. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at shareholders meetings of the Company.

Stock options are granted to directors and to selected employees. The exercise prices of options granted in June
2012, in December 2014, in August 2015 and in May 2016 are higher than the market price of the shares on the date
of grant. The option holders in the 2014, 2015 and 2016 programs are required to hold shares corresponding to
approximately the net gain after tax from exercising the options, whilst employed by Marel. Options are conditional on
the employee completing particular periods' / years’ service (the vesting period). The Group has no legal or
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.
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Stock options
Movements in the number of stock options outstanding and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

follows:
Average
exercise Stock
price per options
share (thousands)
AL L JANUAIY 2015.....cciieiiiieiieie ettt bbbt Rttt b bbbt EUR 0.866 16,771
Grantea N 2015.......cuiuiieiiteeeie ettt b ettt b ettt h bbbt e b et b e e bt bbbt b et e b EUR 1.501 2,200
EXEICISEO. ...ttt bbb bbb b bbbt b ettt ettt n et e EUR 0.625 (7,055)
Forfeited in 2015.......... v BEUR1.018 (1,367)
At 3L DECEMBET 2015, ittt e e EUR 1.139 10,549
[T = a1 (o T 1 0 T PRSP RRRP EUR 1.924 2,160
EXEICISEU. ...ttt b bttt he e bt e bbbt b nae e bbb e eaee EUR 1.053 (2,559)
FOIFEItEA IN 2016.......ecueeiieteeie ettt b et e bbbttt b bbbt b et ben e EUR 1.167 (1,354)
AL 3L DECEMBDET 2016.....ecuiiiiriitiieierieieeiee sttt sttt et bbbttt be et b ettt et nenn EUR 1.339 8,796
Exercisable stock options at 31 December 2016..........coocuiuiiiiiierie e s 1,751
Stock options granted in the year 2012 2014 2015 2016
Stock options expire in year 2018 2021 2021 2022
The exercise prices* per share after:
31 OCIODET 2016......cuveueeeiirienirieieiesiee sttt sttt be e e anne EUR 1.079 - - -
31 OCLODEE 2017.....cciiiiieiiireieieeee ettt EUR 1.093 - - -
31 October 2018... .. BUR1.123 - - -
28 APHIE 2018ttt - EURO0.929 - -
28 AP 2019.....cceieeieieieie e s - EURO0.955 - -
28 APIIE 2020.......c0cceeiiieeiiereeree s - EURO0.980 - -
28 APHIE 2021t s - EUR1.006 - -
28 OCIODET 2018......c.eiuieeiieieieieieie ettt sbe e anne - - EBUR1.461 -
28 OCtODEr 2019.... et s - - EBEUR1.501 -
28 OCtODEr 2020......c.0cueeeiiireiiteieienieie ettt - - BUR1.542 -
28 OCLODET 2021......cueiuieiiieieieie ettt sb e ana - - EBUR1.582 -
28 April 2019 - - - BEUR1.902
28 April 2020 - - - EUR1.938
28 April 2021 - - - BUR1.974
28 April 2022 - - - BUR2.010

* Exercise prices after dividend payment in 2013 EUR 0.0097 per share; after dividend payment in 2015 EUR 0.0048
and after dividend payment in 2016 EUR 0.0158.

In 2016 the following shares were exercised: 2,012 thousand shares at exercise price EUR 1.050 per share and 547
thousand shares at exercise price EUR 1.064 per share. No stock options were cash settled.

In 2015 the following shares were exercised: 3,122 thousand shares at exercise price EUR 0.572 per share, 3,117
thousand shares at exercise price EUR 0.567 per share and 816 thousand shares at exercise price EUR 1.051 per
share. No stock options were cash settled.
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The fair value of the employee stock options granted is measured using the Black-Scholes model. Variables used in
the Black Scholes calculation:

Weighted

Exercise Expected average

price per Expect.  Annual risk-free Esti- remaining

share term dividend interest mated contr. life

(EUR) (years) yield rate volatility in months ¥

Option plan June 2012, 60% exercisable > 31 October 2015..... 1.066 5.4 0.96% 3% 19.68% 22
Option plan June 2012, 20% exercisable > 31 October 2016..... 1.095 54 0.96% 3% 19.68% 22
Option plan June 2012, 20% exercisable > 31 October 2017..... 1.124 5.4 0.96% 3% 19.68% 22
Option plan December 2014, 60% exercisable > 28 April 2018.. 0.949 54 0.00% 3% 22.04% 52
Option plan December 2014, 20% exercisable > 28 April 2019.. 0.975 5.4 0.00% 3% 22.04% 52
Option plan December 2014, 20% exercisable > 28 April 2020.. 1.001 5.4 0.00% 3% 22.04% 52
Option plan August 2015, 60% exercisable > 28 October 2018. 1.477 5.2 0.00% 3% 22.04% 58
Option plan August 2015, 20% exercisable > 28 October 2019. 1.517 52  0.00% 3% 22.04% 58
Option plan August 2015, 20% exercisable > 28 October 2020. 1.558 5.2 0.00% 3% 22.04% 58
Option plan May 2016, 60% exercisable > 28 April 2019........... 1.902 5.0 0.00% 2% 21.52% 64
Option plan May 2016, 20% exercisable > 28 April 2020........... 1.938 5.0 0.00% 2% 21.52% 64
Option plan May 2016, 20% exercisable > 28 April 2021........... 1.974 5.0 0.00% 2% 21.52% 64

Y Based on last possible exercise dates in each stock option plan.

Reserves

Other reserves in Shareholder's equity include the following reserves:
Hedge Translation  Total other

reserve reserve reserves
Balance at 1 January 2015 (3,974) (618) (4,592)
RESUIE FOr the YA ... i e -
Total other comprehensive income 1,453 (1,962) (509)
Balance at 31 December 2015 (2,521) (2,580) (5,101)
Balance at 1 January 2016 (2,521) (2,580) (5,101)
RESUIE FOr the YA ......eieiiiieie e e -
Total other comprehenSIVE INCOIME...........oiiiiiiiiee e 1,730 1,258 2,988
Balance at 31 December 2016 (792) (1,322) (2,113)

Share premium reserve

The Share premium reserve comprises of payment in excess of par value of ISK 1 per share that shareholders have
paid for shares sold by the Company, less payments in excess of par value that the Company has paid for treasury
shares. According to the Icelandic Companies Act, 25% of the nominal value share capital must be held in reserve
which cannot be paid out as dividend to shareholders.

Hedge reserve
The Hedge reserve comprises revaluations on derivatives, on which hedge accounting is applied. The value of
31 December 2016 and 2015 relates to derivatives for the Group, the interest rate swap contracts.
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Translation reserve
The Translation reserve comprises the translation results of the consolidation of subsidiaries reporting in foreign
currencies, as well as a currency revaluation related to financing of subsidiaries.

Limitation in the distribution of Shareholders’ equity

As at 31 December 2016, pursuant to Icelandic law, certain limitations exist relating to the distribution of
Shareholders’ equity. Such limitations relate to legal reserves required by Icelandic law included under Retained
earnings for capitalized intangible assets related to product development projects and for legal reserves relating to
any legal or economic restrictions to the ability of affiliated companies to transfer funds to the parent company in the
form of dividends.

The legal reserve included under Retained earnings for capitalized intangible assets related to product development
projects amounted to EUR 63.4 million as at 31 December 2016. Since the profits retained in Marel hf.’s subsidiaries
can be distributed and received in Iceland, no legal reserve for any legal or economic restrictions to the ability of
affiliated companies to transfer funds to the parent company in the form of dividends is required.

The amount of the legal reserve for the share of profit of affiliates is reduced by dividends received from those
companies and those dividends from them which can be claimed. Therefore Marel could, based on its control as the
parent company, decide to let its subsidiaries pay dividends. The dividends would lower the amount of legal reserves
within equity and therefore leave more room for Marel to make dividend payments to its shareholders. It should be
noted that this new provision of the act does not prevent Marel from making dividend payments to its shareholders in
2017 since the company has a sufficient retained earnings from previous years.

The legal reserves as required by Icelandic law are required as of effective date 1 January 2016.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) relate to minority shares held by third parties in consolidated Group companies. The
net income attributable to NCI amounted to EUR 53 in 2016.

The NCI relates to MPS France S.A.R.L., France, in which the managing director of MPS France holds an ownership
percentage of 24%. The NCI has been acquired as part of the acquisition of MPS, refer to note 4.
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21. Borrowings

Non-current:

BaNK DOITOW INQS ...ttt b e bt et e bbbt e bt e st e e abesbe et e et e eaeesbeesbeenneaneas

FINANCE 18aSE NADINLIES........cccvieieie ittt et e et e e e ab e e sateesabe e sabeesabeesareeannes

Current:

Bank borrow ings excluding bank OVerdraftS...........ocuiiiiiiiiei e

1= U oo 01TV T

SECUIEd DANK IDBNS......c.uiiiiciiciiecte ettt ettt e et e b e et e s te e aeebeeseesaeesbeeseessesaneareenns
FINANCE 18aSE NADINILIES.........ccviiieie ittt et et e e et e e et e e sateeeabe e easeeebeeereeantes
L= U o) 01TV T T

2016

Annual maturity of non-current liabilities:

Year 2018.......ccciiiiiiiiii
Year 2019.......ccoiviiiiiii s

2015

Annual maturity of non-current liabilities:

Y AN 2017 ...ttt
Yar 2018.......eieiiiiiiie ettt
Yar 2019....cuiiiiiiiiie ettt
YAr 2020.......uieeiiiiiieeeiie et

As of 31 December 2016, interest bearing debt amounted to EUR 466,432 (31 December 2015: EUR 240,258), of
which EUR 465,458 (31 December 2015: EUR 240,258) are secured against shares that Marel hf. holds in certain

2016 2015
425,005 217,272
9 15
425,014 217,287
24,117 18,449
449,131 235,736
449,122 235,721
9 15
449,131 235,736
Capitalized Finance
Secured finance Embedded lease Total
bank loans charges derivatives liabilities 2016
30,000 (4,705) (1,178) - 24,117
30,000 (4,274) (786) - 24,940
375,450 - (484) 9 374,975
982 - - - 982
436,432 (8,979) (2,448) 9 425,014
Capitalized Finance
Secured finance Embedded lease Total
bank loans charges derivatives liabilities 2015
20,000 (1,551) - - 18,449
150,243 (1,420) - 15 148,838
50,000 - - - 50,000
220,243 (2,971) - 15 217,287

subsidiaries. Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the lessor in the event

of default.

The Group loan agreements contain restrictive covenants, relating to interest cover and leverage.
At 31 December 2016 and at year end 2015 the Group complies with all restrictive covenants.

The Group has the following headroom in committed ancillary facilities:

Floating rate:

- EXPINNG WtRIN ONE YE@I....c.uiiiiiiiieitieiiiteeie ettt sttt e et nes
- EXPINNG DEYONT ONE YEAI.......oiuiiiiiiieiieieee e bbbttt enes
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22. Provisions

Guarantee Pension Refocusing Other
commitments commitments provisions provisions Total
At 1 January 2015 5,381 5,102 5,911 306 16,700
REIBASE.......ecuiriirieieiiittee e (1,143) - (799) (113) (2,055)
AdItIONS ..o 2,157 1,715 3,429 560 7,861
130 (443) (6,495) 204 (6,604)
At 31 December 2015 6,525 6,374 2,046 957 15,902
At 1 January 2016 6,525 6,374 2,046 957 15,902
Release........ccooieeiiiiiie (952) - - (2,618) (3,570)
Business combinations, note 4....................... 1,376 111 - 8,047 9,534
AdILIONS ... 2,658 1,487 - 2,265 6,410
(611) (355) (2,046) (4,774) (7,786)
At 31 December 2016 8,996 7,617 - 3,877 20,490

7 Including the provision for early retirement rights, which has increased to EUR 3,960 at 31 December 2016

(31 December 2015: EUR 3,541).

Analysis of total provisions

[T (T o | PR SPRRN

N0 Lo U Y o | PSSP

Specification of major items in provisions:

Nature of obligation for 2016
Guarantee
Guarantee

Guarantee

Nature of obligation for 2015

GUANANTEE. ......eiiiiiiieciie e e
GUAIANTEE......eeeiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e e st e e be e e sbe e e snneeeanes
GUANBNTEE. ......eiiiieitiesiie sttt
REFOCUSING. .....eeviiiiiiee e
REFOCUSING. ..ottt e
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Country
Netherlands
us
Denmark

Country
Netherlands
us
Denmark
us
Denmark

2016 2015

13,129 8,959

7,361 6,943

20,490 15,902
Maturity Likelihood Amount
Dynamic Dynamic 4,841
Dynamic Dynamic 1,092
Dynamic Dynamic 836
Maturity Likelihood Amount
Dynamic Dynamic 2,255
Dynamic Dynamic 1,302
Dynamic Dynamic 723
Static  Highly probable 646
Static  Highly probable 615
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23. Employee benefits

The Group maintains various pension plans covering the majority of its employees.

The Company’s pension costs for all employees for 2016 were EUR 19,913 (2015: EUR 16,473). This includes
defined contribution plans for EUR 11,591 (2015: EUR 9,940), as well as a pension plan based on multi-employer
union plan for EUR 8,322 (2015: EUR 6,533).

The Company’s employees in the Netherlands, 1,443 (2015: 1,030) in full-time employees, participate in a multi-
employer union plan (“Bedrijfstakpensioenfonds Metalektro”, PME) determined in accordance with the collective
bargaining agreements effective for the industry in which Marel operates. This pension plan is treated as a defined
contribution scheme based on the following grounds:
1. Itis an industry-wide pension fund, used by the Company in common with other legal entities;
2. Under the regulations of the PME, the only obligation for the affiliated businesses towards the PME is to pay
the annual premium liability. The affiliated businesses are under no obligation whatsoever to pay off any
deficits the PME may incur, nor have they any claim to any potential surpluses.

The multi-employer plan covers approximately 1,300 companies and 147,000 contributing members. The plan
monitors its risks on a global basis, not by company or employee, and is subject to regulation by Dutch governmental
authorities. By law (the Dutch Pension Act), a multi-employer union plan must be monitored against specific criteria,
including the coverage ratio of the plan’s assets to its obligations. This coverage ratio must exceed 104.3 percent for
the total plan. Every company participating in a Dutch multi-employer union plan contributes a premium calculated as
a percentage of its total pensionable wages and salaries, with each company subject to the same percentage
contribution rate.

The Company’s net periodic pension cost for this multi-employer plan for any period is the amount of the required
contribution for that period.

The coverage ratio of the multi-employer plan decreased to 96.20 percent as per 31 December 2016

(31 December 2015: 96.40). The decrease is caused by developments in the financial markets and abolition of the 3
months average interest rate to the 12 months average interest rate, as prescribed by De Nederlandsche Bank (the
Dutch central bank, the supervisor of all pension companies in the Netherlands). The coverage ratio is below the
legally required level of 104.3. The “Recovery Plan”, which was approved by the board of the pension fund on

25 June 2015, indicates that the coverage ratio will increase within 12 years to 121.2%.

In 2017 the pension premium will be 22.9 percent of the total pensionable salaries (2016: 23.2%), in accordance with
the articles of association of the Pension Fund. The coverage ratio is calculated by dividing the fund’s capital by the
total sum of pension liabilities and is based on actual market interest.
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24. Financial instruments and risks

Financial risk factors

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the below mentioned risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing the risk. Further quantitative disclosures are included
throughout these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Risk management framework

The main financial risks faced by Marel relate to liquidity risk and market risk (comprising interest rate risk, currency
risk, price risk and credit risk). Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (Group Treasury)
under policies and with instruments approved by the Board of Directors. Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and
hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Group’s overall risk management
program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures and
does not enter into financial contracts for speculative purposes.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to currency risk arising from mainly the USD and ISK, primarily
with respect to the EUR, as the EUR is the Group’s reporting currency. Generally Marel maintains a good natural
hedge in its operations with a good match between revenue and cost in most currencies although only a fraction of a
percentage of revenues is denominated in ISK, while around 7.64% (2015: 7.18%) of costs is in ISK. Financial
exposure is hedged in accordance with the Group’s general policy and within set limits. The Group monitors foreign
exchange risk arising from commercial transactions, recognized assets and liabilities (transaction risk) that are
determined in a currency other than the entity’s functional currency. Derivative hedging is applied if the exposure is
outside of the risk tolerance band on a consolidated basis. Currently all exposures are within risk tolerance and the
group has no FX derivatives in place. Currency exposure arising from net assets of the Group’s major foreign
operations (translation risk) is managed primarily through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign currencies
as the policy is to apply natural exchange rate hedging where possible. Economic risk is defined as the extent to
which currency fluctuations can alter a company’s future operating cash flows, that is future revenues and costs.
Economic risk is not hedged.

The year end and average rates used for the main currencies mentioned above are:

Year-end Average rate Year-end Average
rate 2016 2016 rate 2015 rate 2015
BURIUSD......oiiaieiieieisieie ittt 1.0453 1.1073 1.0927 1.1108
BUR/ISK ..ottt 119.3820 134.4910 142.6080 146.7756

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity of transaction and translation risk to a 10% increase and decrease
in the EUR against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the period-end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans to foreign operations within the Group where the denomination of
the loan is in a currency other than the functional currency of the lender or the borrower. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit or loss or Equity where the EUR strengthens 10% against the relevant currency. For a
10% weakening of the EUR against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or loss or
Equity, and the balances below would be opposite.

2016 2015
USDim pact ISKimpact USDimpact ISKimpact
PrOfit OF (JOSS)...cviveveireieeiiiseiee e (2,631) 679 (844) 528
BUILY .. - - - -
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Finance Capitalised

lease finance  Embedded Other
Liabilities in currency recorded in EUR in 2016 liabilities charges derivative borrowings Total
Liabilities in EUR.........coooviierienieenecereieenes - (11,266) (3,626) 365,000 350,108
Liabilities in USD........ccocviriviieiiiiieeiise e - (2,418) - 100,450 98,032
Liabilities in other currencies 9 - - 982 991
9 (13,684) (3,626) 466,432 449,131
CUITENt TADIIES........veeooeeeeeeeeeeereseeeeeeeeee e - 4,705 1,178 (30,000) (24,117)
9 (8,979) (2,448) 436,432 425,014

Finance Capitalised

lease finance  Embedded Other
Liabilities in currency recorded in EUR in 2015 liabilities charges derivative borrowings Total
Liabilities iN EUR..........ccovoiiirieieeeeee e - (3,206) - 135,000 131,794
Liabilities in USD........ccoeeririririiinieeirere e - (1,316) - 105,243 103,927
Liabilities in other currencies..........ocovovveeeeeeeeennnn 15 - - - 15
15 (4,522) - 240,243 235,736
Current iabilities............oeeeirieieiieecen - 1,551 - (20,000) (18,449)
15 (2,971) - 220,243 217,287

(if) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The risk
is managed by maintaining a mix between fixed and floating interest rate on borrowings. Generally the Group raises
long term borrowings and pays a floating interest rate. To hedge the resulting cash flow interest rate risk the Group
uses interest rate swaps, where it pays a fixed interest rate and receives a floating interest rate. The floating rates are
fixed on a quarterly basis. The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that between 50 — 70% of its exposure to changes
in interest rates on core debt is hedged with an interest rate swap with a maximum maturity of 5 years. Presently
around 36% (2015: 42%) of the core debt has floating interest rates and the rest is fixed. As at reporting date a total
of EUR 298.0 million (2015: EUR 139.0 million) floating rate liabilities were swapped into fixed interest rates. The
weighted average fixed rate of the interest swaps currently is 0.50% (2015: 2.00%).

In 2008 the company started applying Cash flow hedge accounting to hedge the variability in the interest cash
outflows of the 3 months EURIBOR/LIBOR Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes. Throughout the year 2016 as well as
per year end the cash flow hedge accounting relationships were effective. The amounts deferred in Equity at year-
end are expected to affect interest costs within the coming 3 years.

At year-end 2016, if EURIBOR interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been EUR 322 (2015: EUR 150) lower/higher.

At year-end 2016, if US LIBOR interest rates had been 25 basis points higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been EUR 96 (2015: EUR 103) lower/higher.

Among the actions taken to monitor the interest rate risk are stress tests to establish sensitivity to possible
movements in rates and how they might affect the Group's results.

(iii) Capital Management

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base in order to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board monitors on leverage, defined as Net Debt
divided by EBITDA, as well as on the return on capital, which the Group defines as result from operations divided by
total Equity. The Board also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.
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The Board'’s target is to arrange for maximum 6% of total share capital for shares held by employees of the Group
under the stock option plans. At present employees will hold 1.20% (2015: 1.40%) of the shares, assuming that all
outstanding stock options are vested and / or are executed.

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns on equity that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security of a sound capital position. The Group uses the leverage ratio in their
approach to capital management.

The Group's debt to adjusted capital ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

2016 2015
TOAI DOTTOW INGS ...ttt bbb bbbt b bbbt b et er s 449,131 235,736
Cash and CaSh EQUIVAIBNES ...t (45,523) (92,976)
Net INtEreSt BEANNG DEDL.........cuiiiiieieiiiiiieieee ettt b bbbttt e b ebetas 403,608 142,760

Total Equity 525,573 446,739
Hedge Reserve 791 2,521
AGJUSTEA CAPIEAL ... e.vveveeieieieieiees ettt b e se bbb bbb s et b e b se st et et et e e b e be b e e s ebenenea 526,364 449,260
Debt t0 adjusted CAPILAl FALIO. .......c.cvrerieiiirieieiee ettt e 0.77 0.32

From time to time the Group purchases its own shares in the market. Primarily the shares are intended to be used for
issuing shares under the Group's stock option plans. The timing of these purchases depends on the requirement to
settle employee’s stock option exercises. Buy and sell decisions are taken by the Board of Directors. Based on a
motion approved in the Annual General Meeting of shareholders, the Board of Directors can acquire up to 10% of its
own shares at a price which is not higher than 10% over and not lower than 10% under the average price of shares in
the Company for the two weeks immediately preceding the acquisition. Secondarily, shares are intended to be used
as payment for potential future acquisitions, per the company’s announcement on 29 April 2015.

(iv) Insurance

The Group maintains global and local insurance programs. The coverage comprises property damage, business
interruption, general and product liability, marine cargo/mounting, directors’ and officers’ liability, employers practice
liability, business travel and accident. The Group believes that its current insurance coverage is adequate.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty fails to meet its contractual
obligations. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with
banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and
committed transactions. The credit quality of the customer is assessed, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Each customer has a set credit limit and the utilization of the credit limit is regularly
monitored.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure. The maximum exposure to

credit risk at the reporting date was:
Carrying amount

2016 2015
Trade rECEIVADIES...........oceeicc e 115,496 100,139
Other receivables and PrePaYMENTS..........covii ittt b bbb es 32,723 29,139
Cash and CASh EQUIVAIBNES...........c.eurrrrrrrrrrs ettt ettt enes 45,523 92,976

193,742 222,254

No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period, and management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counterparties (refer to notel5).

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016 59
All amounts in EUR*1000 unless otherwise stated.



Cmarel

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and products are not delivered until
payments are secured. The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of trade and other receivables (refer to note 15).

The Group has banking relations with a diversified set of financial institutions around the world. The Group has
policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution and has International Swaps and
Derivatives Association agreements in place with counterparties in all derivative transactions.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and committed credit facilities to give reasonable operating headroom. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under
committed credit lines. The Group has EUR 255 million of committed ancillary facilities, which can be used both as a
revolver and to issue guarantees for down payments. At year end the Group had drawn EUR 52 million (2015:

EUR 0 million) on the revolver and issued EUR 28 million (2015: EUR 26 million) of guarantees under the facility,
therefore the total usage is EUR 80 million (2015: EUR 26 million), leaving a headroom of EUR 145 million (2015:
EUR 74 million). All facilities are subject to operational and Consolidated Statement of Financial Position covenants
(interest cover and leverage). At the end of 2016 there is sufficient headroom.

Cash flow forecasts are done at the local levels and monitored by Group Treasury. Group liquidity reports are viewed
by management on a weekly basis. The Group has a cross border notional cash pool with the aim of making better
use of the Group cash position and to further decrease the amount of idle cash.

The table below analyses cash outflows per maturity group based on the remaining period at reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Lessthanl  Betweenl Over
At 31 December 2016 year and 5 years 5years
BOITOW INGS ...ttt bbbttt 24,117 424,032 982
Interest on borrow ings.... 12,516 23,598 -
Finance 1ease lIabilitIes.............covrvrerieeiceee e - 9 -
Trade and Other PAYADIES..........ccouiciiiiee b 168,980 - -
INTEFEST FAIE SW ADS. ...tttk ettt 1,271 3,127 -
Total 206,884 450,766 982
At 31 December 2015
BOITOW INGS ..ottt ettt b ettt s e neen 18,449 217,272
INtEreSt ON DOTTOW INGS......viiiieiiiieteie ettt 5,725 13,050 -
Finance 1ease lIabilitIes. ..o - 15 -
Trade and Other PAYADIES..........ccooiiiiiee e 139,227 - -
Interest rate sw aps 2,425 2,260 -
Total 165,826 232,597 -

In November 2015, the Group entered into a new EUR 670 million facilities agreement with eight international banks,
led by ING bank, Rabobank and ABN Amro. The terms and conditions are generally in line with Loan Market
Association corporate standards. The new facility was utilized to repay the previous facility from 2010 as well as
providing funds for the acquisition of MPS. The facility converts the previous facility into an all senior facility, extends
the term to 2020 as well as provides funds for the acquisition of MPS.
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The key elements of the financing are:

- Afive-year all senior loan and revolver, consisting of a EUR 343 million and a USD 105 million term loan and
EUR 225 million multicurrency revolver, with final maturity in November 2020.

- Initial interest terms are EURIBOR/LIBOR + 275 bps, which will vary in line with Marel’s leverage ratio (Net
debt/EBITDA) at the end of each quarter.

The Group has a financing structure which can accommodate the Group’s financing requirements until 2020 with

USD and EUR borrowings matching the Group’s exposure in these currencies to a large extent. The facility has an

embedded 0% floor in the EURIBOR and LIBOR rates.

At the date of utilization of the loans (29 January 2016) the 5 year EURIBOR curve was negative and consequently
the floor has intrinsic value at the date of inception. In accordance to IAS 39 Financial Instruments, Marel has
separated the embedded derivative from the facility and reports the intrinsic value on a fair value basis as a financial
derivative on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Fair value estimation

The Group generally does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, and the Group does not designate derivatives (interest rate swaps) as hedging instruments under a fair value
hedge accounting model. The only fair value instrument accounted for in the profit and loss statement is the 0% floor
embedded in the EUR term loan and revolving facility. During 2016 the floor results in a profit of EUR 0.8 million in
finance cost. If 3 months EURIBOR restores to values above 0% the result would be a profit EUR 3.6 million.

Fair value versus carrying amount
The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making measurements:

Level 1:

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active market, such as trading and available-for-sale securities, is
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price.

Level 2:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each reporting date. These valuation techniques are based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). Derivatives are valued by an independent third party based on market
conditions, which takes into account Credit Value Adjustment and Debit Value Adjustment corrections.

Level 3:
Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs.

The fair value of borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not significant and is
classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate
based on the borrowings rate of 3.16% (2015: 3.00%). The weighted average interest rate on borrowings in 2016,
including effect of floating to fixed interest rates swaps is 3.16% (2015: 3.00%).

The fair value of the finance lease liabilities equals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not
significant. The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the average interest rate of
4.0% (2015: 4.0%).
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The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, are as follows:

Fair value-
hedging Loans & Other financial Total carrying
2016 Notes instruments  receivables liabilities amount Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents............c.cccovvveeviniieennns - 45,523 - 45,523 45,523
ReCEIVADIES........ocviviiciiciccce e 15 - 148,219 - 148,219 148,219
- 193,742 - 193,742 193,742
Interest rate swaps used for hedging.............cce.... 24 (4,444) - - (4,444) (4,444)
Secured bank [0ans..........ccccoveerinrninneeen 21 - - (449,122) (449,122) (449,122)
Finance lease liabilities............c.ccccoeovieiennnccnnne 21 - - 9) 9) 9)
Trade and other payables...........cccocvevennnicirinnne. 25 - - (168,980) (168,980) (168,980)
(4,444) - (618,111) (622,555) (622,555)
2015
Cash and cash equivalents............cccccovrecinnieens - 92,976 - 92,976 92,976
RECEIVADIES......cocvviteicectecec e 15 - 129,278 - 129,278 129,278
- 222,254 - 222,254 222,254
Interest rate swaps used for hedging.............ccc.... 24 (3,057) - - (3,057) (3,057)
Secured bank loans..........ccccoveenenne 21 - - (235,721) (235,721) (235,721)
Finance lease liabilities 21 - - (15) (15) (15)
Trade and other payables..........ccccoveverinnccninnnne. 25 - - (139,227) (139,227) (139,227)
(3,057) - (374,963) (378,020) (378,020)

The table below analyses financial instruments, measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period, by the level
in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:

At 31 December 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Derivatives liabilities held for risk management............ccccovvroeinnncienenene - 4,444 - 4,444

At 31 December 2015
Derivatives liabilities held for risk management............ccooveeviienncnnnins - 3,057 - 3,057

No financial instruments were transferred from Level 1 to Level 2, or from Level 2 to Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

Interest-rate swap

To protect Marel from fluctuations in Euribor-EUR-Reuters/Libor-BBA and in accordance with the interest hedge
policy Marel has entered into interest rate swaps (the hedging instruments) to receive floating interest and to pay
fixed interest.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding active interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2016 was
EUR 298,183 (31 December 2015: EUR 139,061).

In relation to the refinancing utilized on the 29 January 2016 Marel has entered into further interest rate swaps during
Q2 2016 to be in line with its risk management policy to have 50 -70% of its exposure to changes in interest rates
hedged for 3 — 5 years.
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FX Forwards

With the acquisitions of MPS in January 2016, Marel acquired FX forward contracts with principal of approximately
EUR 2.9 million and market to market value of EUR 0.05 million. The forward swaps were used for hedging purposes
of projects in USD and CAD. These contracts will be held to maturity and Marel’s currency risk policy will be applied
for future transactions.

2016 Currency Principal Maturity Interest %
INtErest rate SWAP.......coiie e USD 55,000 2017 2.4%
INtErest rate SWAP......c..eieee e EUR 6,000 2017 0.8%
INterest rate SWAP.........ooeeie e e EUR 25,000 2017 0.1%
INtErest rate SWAP.......coii e EUR 55,000 2018 0.2%
Forw ard starting interest rate SWAP..........coccoviiiienienieee e USD 60,000 2018 2.2%
Embedded floor (0,00% cap on interest rates in financing agreements) EUR 445,000 2020 0.0%
INtErest rate SWAP.......ooiiee e USD 10,000 2020 1.3%
INEEIESE rAte SWAP......ci e nee s EUR 150,000 2020 -0.1%
Forw ard starting interest rate SWAP...........ccccovniriiiniiineeee s UsD 60,000 2020 1.5%
FX EUR DKK interest rate SWAP (EUR fixed, DKK floating).................... EUR 1,079 2027 5.2%
FX Forwards Currency Principal Maturity Av. Rate
FX forwards Sell CAD Buy EUR........c.ccoouiiiiiieieiee e CAD 98 2016 1.552

2015 Currency Principal  Maturity Interest %
INtErest rate€ SWAP.........oe e USD 70,000 2016 1.8%
INEEIESE rate SWAP.......c.i et EUR 50,000 2016 3.1%
Forw ard starting interest rate SWAP...........ccoiiiriiiininieeeee e UsD 55,000 2017 2.4%
Forw ard starting interest rate SWAP..........ccccoiiiiniiiie e EUR 6,000 2017 0.8%
INterest rate SWAP.........ooei e EUR 25,000 2017 0.1%
Forw ard starting interest rate SWAP...........ccooveriinenieeeeeene e EUR 55,000 2018 0.2%
Forw ard starting interest rate SWAP..........coccoviiiinieiiee e USD 60,000 2018 2.2%

25. Trade and other payables

2016 2015
Trade PAYADIES.......c.eeeeeee ettt nnes 73,003 52,392
AACCTUAIS . ...ttt ettt e e a e e e bt e e et e e e a bt e e sab e e e bb e e e st e e eabee e enb e e e enbe e e enbeeebeeeannnas 9,012 8,586
PErsONNEl PAY@DIES......c..ooiiiiiieeeee ettt ae e 43,814 34,931
Other PAYADIES......c ittt ettt e e ae e e bt e e e b e e e sabe e e enbe e e snbe e e aneeeanees 43,151 43,318
Total Trade and other PAYAbIES..........ccoviiiiiiiie e e 168,980 139,227
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26. Operating leases, commitments and insurance
Operating lease commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:
2016 2015
(=TT 1 o I V7= S 8,142 6,334
BEIW EEN 1 @NU 5 YAIS. .. .ei i eiiecieesiee st stee ettt te e st e st e sreesaeeareeenteenteenseenneenseesreenneeeneas 15,526 8,999
(IS (T 1 T T S V= T PR 8,467 4,824
Total operational [ease ADIIILIES...............eiieiieii e e 32,135 20,157

During the year an amount of EUR 9,463 was recognized as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of Income in
respect of operating leases (2015: EUR 7,029).

Commitments and Insurance

The Group has covered Business Interruption Risks with an insurance policy underwritten by an independent
insurance company for a maximum period of 24 months for Marel Stork Poultry Processing B.V. and 18 months for all
other Marel entities. The insurance benefits for Business Interruption amount to EUR 628 million for 2016 (2015:

EUR 414 million) for the whole Group. The Group Insurance value of buildings amounts to EUR 147 million (2015:
EUR 140 million), productions machinery and equipment including software and office equipment amount to

EUR 160 million (2015: EUR 132 million) and inventories to EUR 142 million (2015: EUR 120 million). Currently there
are no major differences between appraisal value and insured value.

27. Contingencies

At 31 December 2016 the Group had contingent liabilities in respect of bank and other guarantees and other matters
arising in the ordinary course of business from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise. In the
ordinary course of business the Group has given guarantees amounting to EUR 42,575 (2015: EUR 27,822) to third
parties.

As part of doing business and acquisitions the Group is involved in claims and litigations, under such indemnities and
guarantees. These claims are pending and all are contested. Provisions are recognized when an outflow of economic
benefits for settlement is probable and the amount can be estimated reliably. It should be understood that, in light of
possible future developments, such as (a) potential additional lawsuits, (b) possible future settlements, and (c) rulings
or judgments in pending lawsuits, certain cases may result in additional liabilities and related costs.

At this point in time, we cannot estimate any additional amount of loss or range of loss in excess of the recorded
amounts with sufficient certainty to allow such amount or range of amounts to be meaningful. Moreover, if and to the
extent that the contingent liabilities materialize, they are often resolved over a number of years and the timing of such
payments cannot be predicted with confidence. While the outcome of said cases, claims and disputes cannot be
predicted with certainty, we believe, based upon legal advice and information received, that the final outcome will not
materially affect our consolidated financial position but could be material to our results of operations or cash flows in
any one accounting period.
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28. Related party transactions

At 31 December 2016 and 2015 and during the financial years there are no loans to the members of the Board of
Directors and the CEO. In addition, there were no transactions carried out (purchases of goods and services)
between the Group and members of the Board of Directors nor the CEO in the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Board of Directors' fee for the year 2016 and shares Bought
at year-end shares
Pension acc.to Shares
Board contribu- Stock stock atyear-
fee  tion” options? options? end ?
Asthildur Margrét Otharsdottir , ChaIFMaN...........cco.eeereveereeesrensesenesians 107 9 - - 32
Arnar Pér Masson, Vice ChairMan.........cccccoovveieeiueeceiiee e e e 74 6 - - -
Ann Hizabeth Savage, Board Member............cocoeeiiiiiinieniiienie e 41 3 - - -
Astvaldur J6hannsson, Board MEMDET.............ccoovevevreriesrerenssenenins 41 3 - - -
Helgi MagnUsson, Board Member............cccoovriiienineeiincee e 41 3 - - 3,779
Margrét Jonsdéttir, Board MEMDET..............ccovvvveeeesiieeseseessensienseeines 41 3 - - 193 3
Olafur S. Gudmundsson, Board MEMDET ..............c.ceveerrerereeeresereeeenennn. 33 3 - - 1,705
Key management remuneration 2016
Bought
shares
Salary  Share Pension acc.to Shares
and based Incentive contribu- Stock stock atyear-
benefits benefits payments  tion” options ? options? end ?
Arni Oddur bérdarson, Chief Executive Officer...... 539 - 203 73 360 - 132 %
Executive Management..........cccoovverevverenesicenenens 3,645 552 1,093 353 6,510 711 634

Y Pension contributions for all board members and the management are part of a defined contribution plan.

2 Number of shares * 1000.

% Margrét Jonsdéttir is the Managing Director of Operation of Eyrir Invest hf. and Arni Oddur Pérdarson is a major
shareholder of Eyrir Invest hf., which on 31 December 2016 held 215,366,838 shares in Marel hf. (29.28% of total
issued shares).

) Marel has identified ten executives who have material significance for Marel's operations. This group consists of
Chief Financial Officer, executive vice president (“EVP”) Poultry, EVP Meat, EVP Fish, EVP Commercial, EVP
Further Processing, EVP Supply Chain, EVP Human Resources, EVP Strategy and Corporate Development and
EVP Innovation. Two of them left the company in March and one joined at the same time. Salaries and benefits
include severance settlements to two ex-EVPs which are according to local laws and employment contracts.

Marel hf., Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2016 65
All amounts in EUR*1000 unless otherwise stated.



Cmarel

Stock options 2016

Average
exercise
Number price
of EUR per
shares ?  share
Arni Oddur PArdarson, ChIef EXECULIVE OFfICET.......evi et ieeeteeeeeee et eeee et et e eeeees et eeseees e et eeeeesereeneenn 360 1.924
TEN OtNEI BXECULIVES .....cuveiieeieie ettt ettt st e e e e s st e s e sae e s e e s beeseentesseeneesaeeneeneeaseentenneeneenneanes 885 1.079
2,025 0.944
1,800 1.485
1,800 1.924
2 Number of shares * 1000
Board of Directors' fee for the year 2015 and shares Bought
at year-end shares
Pension acc.to Shares
Board contribu- Stock stock atyear-
fee  tion” options® options? end ?
Asthildur Margrét Otharsdottir , ChairMaN...........cco.evevevrereeeerersesinesins 98 8 - - 32
Arnar POr Masson, Vice Chairman...........cocceeerrieenenieeneneeneeneeeeeseeanees 65 5 - - -
Ann Hizabeth Savage, Board MEMDET.........cccoveieriiieneeeee e, 33 3 - - -
Astvaldur J6hannsson, Board MEMBET...........veveeeeeereeeeeeeeseeenenns 33 3 - - -
Helgi MagnUisson, Board Member ... 33 3 - - 4,305
Margrét Jonsdottir, Board MEMDET..............ccooveivevisieeseeeeesseneeeeenes 33 3 - - 193 %
Olafur S. Gudmundsson, Board MEMbET ..............c.ccovueveivrrrneeeesiesnsnn, 33 3 - - 1,705
Bought
shares
Salary  Share Pension acc.to Shares
and based Incentive contribu- Stock stock atyear-
benefits benefits payments  tion” options ? options? end ?
Arni Oddur bérdarson, Chief Executive Officer...... 523 - 33 53 - - 1329
Executive Management...........ccoveverereeneneenienienne 2,649 597 227 261 6,535 1,038 458

Y pension contributions for all board members and the management are part of a defined contribution plan.

% Number of shares * 1000.

¥ Margrét Jonsdéttir is the Managing Director of Operation of Eyrir Invest hf. and Arni Oddur bérdarson is a major
shareholder of Eyrir Invest hf., which on 31 December 2015 held 215,366,838 shares in Marel hf. (29.28% of total
issued shares).

) Marel has identified eleven executives who have material significance for Marel's operations. This group consists of
Chief Financial Officer, EVP Poultry, EVP Meat, EVP Fish, EVP Commercial, EVP Further Processing, EVP Supply
Chain, EVP Human Resources, EVP Strategy and Corporate Development, EVP Innovation and EVP Commercial
Regions.
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Stock options 2015

EIEVEN OtNEI EXECULIVES ......cciiviei et e eeeitee e ettt e e ettt e e ettt e e e et te e e sabeeeeebaeeeseabeseeabaeeeesabaeeesabseeeesnsteeesanseneean

3 Number of shares * 1000.

29. Events after balance sheet date

No significant events have taken place since the reporting date.

30. Subsidiaries

The largest subsidiaries are listed below:

Marel Australia Pty. Ltd. ........ccooiiiiieee
Marel Brasil Commercial e Industrial Ltda ................ccoceveee
Marel AIS ...
MPS BUtina A/lS. ...,
Marel SAlImon A/S ...
Marel France S AR.L ..o
Marel GmMbH & C0. KG ..o
Marel Iceland ehf. ... ...
Marel Holding B.V. ...
Marel Meat Processing B.V. .......ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee
Marel Stork Poultry Processing B.V. ...,
Marel Townsend Further Processing B.V. ...........c.cociinnene.
MPS Aqua Industrial Watertreatment B.V. .................ooeeee.
MPS Food Logistics Systems B.V. .......ccocoiviiiiiiiiiiinin,
MPS Red Meat Slaughtering B.V..........ccocoiiiiiiiniiinn.
MPS Service & Spares B.V.......coooiiiiiiiiiii
Marel NOrge AS ...
Marel Slovakia S.r.0. ..o
Marel GB Ltd. ..o
Marel Ltd. ...
Marel Seattle INC ...
Marel INC. ..o
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Country of

Incorporation

Australia
Brazil
Denmark
Denmark
Denmark
France
Germany
Iceland
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Norway
Slovakia

UK

UK

USA

USA

Number

of
shares ?
1,860
2,475

2,200

Average
exercise
price
EUR per
share
1.077
0.960
1.501

Ownership

Interest

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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31. Quarterly results (unaudited)

Q42016 Q32016 Q22016 Q12016 Total
REVENUE......otiiiiii et 250,026 234,806 264,208 220,631 969,671
COSt Of SAIES.....eviiiecierie e (148,843) (140,787) (155,009) (128,024) (572,663)
Gross profit 101,183 94,019 109,199 92,607 397,008
Selling and marketing eXpenses. ........coccevvevierieeneeneeneesnnn (36,016) (28,138) (33,893) (30,452) (128,499)
Research and development eXpenses...........ccoceeieeieeninene (13,581) (16,358) (17,857) (15,307) (63,103)
General and administrative eXpenses..........c.ccveveeirenrenenenn (16,643)  (16,121) (17,700) (15,806) (66,270)
Other operating iNCome / (EXPENSES)....c..cevvrreeeveerieereeninens 144 - - 81 225
Adjusted result from operations*) 35,087 33,402 39,749 31,123 139,361
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets............. (6,705) (6,746) (6,587) (4,547) (24,585)
Result from operations (EBIT) 28,382 26,656 33,162 26,576 114,776
Net fINANCE COSTS......eoiiiiirieieri e (3,786) (5,769) (6,784) (8,948) (25,287)
Result before income tax 24,596 20,887 26,378 17,628 89,489
[NCOME TAX ..o (1,960) (3,559) (4,250) (3,876)  (13,645)
Result for the period 22,636 17,328 22,128 13,752 75,844
Result before depreciation & amortization (EBITDA).............. 47,353 41,527 48,379 38,185 175,444

Q42015 Q32015 Q22015 Q12015 Total
Revenue we. 201,913 189,106 218,272 209,311 818,602
Cost of sales (122,049) (115,183) (134,008) (127,847) (499,087)
Gross profit 79,864 73,923 84,264 81,464 319,515
Selling and marketing eXpenSses. ........cocceveevierieenieenee e (28,449) (24,368) (29,510) (28,111) (110,438)
Research and development eXpenses..........c.ccoevveveenenicne (15,019) (13,182) (12,917) (15,886) (57,004)
General and administrative eXpPenses..........ccovcveeereeneennens (17,984) (12,184) (12,168) (13,619) (55,955)
Other operating inCome / (EXPENSES).......ccevverueeueeieeseaninns 509 (23) (10) (11) 465
Adjusted result from operations*) 18,921 24,166 29,659 23,837 96,583
RefOCUSING COSES......ciiviiiiiiiie e (4,295) (1,960) (1,122) (7,593) (14,970)
Result from operations (EBIT) 14,626 22,206 28,537 16,244 81,613
Net fINANCE COSES......uiiiiiiiiieree e (3,544) (4,877) (3,474) (12) (11,907)
Result before income tax 11,082 17,329 25,063 16,232 69,706
INCOME TAX ...ttt (1,220) (2,631) (5,547) (3,612)  (13,010)
Result for the period 9,862 14,698 19,516 12,620 56,696
Result before deprec. & amortization (EBITDA)..........cccccueenee 23,599 29,686 38,135 29,393 120,813

K Adjusted result from operations: for 2016 this means adjusted for amortization of acquisition-related intangible
assets and for 2015 adjusted for refocusing costs.
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